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Regd. Office: 302, Link Rose Building, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400054, India.
Ph.: 022-26489142 / 47 / 48 « Fax No. 022-26489143 « CIN : L24100MH1980PLC023177
Email : info@indoborax.com ¢ Website : www.indoborax.com

o August, 2021
Te;
BSE Ltd,
Corporate Relationship Department,
Phiroze Jeejebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,
Mumbai ~ 400 001

Dear Sir/Madam,
Ref: Code 524342

Sub: Notice of 40" Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 2020-21

Pursuant to Regulation 30 and Regulation 34(1) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, (Listing Regulations), please find enclosed herewith Annual
Report of Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited along with Notice convening the 40t Annual General Meeting
of the Company scheduled to be held on Saturday, August 28, 2021 at 1:00 p.m. IST through Video
Conferencing (“VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility.

In compliance with General Circular Nos.14/2020, 17/2020 and 20/2020 dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13% January, 2021 respectively, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Citcular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12,
2020 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 issued by SEBI,
the Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 has
been sent to all the members of the Company whose email addresses are registered with the Company or
Depository Participant(s).

In terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management & Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended), and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations, the Company is providing the
facility to its members (holding shares either in physical or dematerialized form) to exercise their right to
vote by electronic means on the businesses specified in the Notice convening the AGM of the Company
("Remote e-voting™).

The Company is also offering the facility to the Members to cast their vote electronically during the AGM.
Accordingly, the Company has fixed Friday, August 20, 2021 as the cut-off date to determine the eligibility
of the members to cast their vote by electronic means and e-voting during the AGM. The voting rights of
Membets shall be in the proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as
on the cut-off date.

The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 is also being made
available on the website of the Company at www.indoborax.com.

This is for your information and appropriate dissemination.

Thanking you,
For Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd
QﬂM
W

Pravt havan
Company Secretary

Encl.: As stated above
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Product Profile

Over the years we have created a strong product portfolio along with robust quality for our consumers. Our

stringent quality control measures ensure that we do not compromise on raw material quality and process

integrity.

We are in the business of Boron and Lithium products which includes Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder &
Granular, Boric Acid IP Grade (Indian Pharmacopoeia Grade) Powder & Granular, and Lithium Hydroxide

Monohydrate.

Boric Acid Technical Grade Granular: Used in fused products i.e. glass, glass fibre ceramics, frits, glazed,
porcelain enamels. It is also used as fluxes and metallurgical operations like welding, brazing, paste fluxes and

soldering fluxes etc. Itis also used as catalysts in cyclohexane and hydrocarbon oxidation.

Boric Acid Technical Grade Powder: Used as fluxes and in metallurgical operations like welding and brazing. It is
also used as fire retardant, as catalysts in in cyclohexane and hydrocarbon oxidation. Other uses are condensers,
dishwashing products, and lubricants. It is also used in nuclear applications and in agricultural as micronutrients

in fertilizers.

Boric Acid IP Grade: We are the only manufacture of IP grade Boric Acid in the country. IP Grade is used in eye

wash, ointments, foot powder, shampoo, skin cream, mouth wash and in veterinary formulations.

Lithium Hydroxide Monohydrate: It is used in manufacturing lubricant greases, dyestuff and speciality resins. It

isalsoused in batteries of electric vehicles (EVs).



KEY INDICATORS
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NOTICE OF 40'"ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fortieth (40™) Annual General Meeting of the members of Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd. will be held on
Saturday, 28" August, 2021 at 1.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ('VC'} facility or other audio visual means ('OAVM') to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including consolidated audited financial statements} of the
Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Todeclare adividend of Rs. 10.00 {Rupces Ten Only] per equity share for the financial yearended 317 March, 2021.
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3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sajal Jain, Director (DIN: 00314855] of the Company, who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himselffor re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Appointment of Mr: Javeshkumar Narottamdas Gandhi (DIN-01497163) as a Director of the Company.

To consider and, ifthought fit, to pass with or witheut modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resalution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Jayeshkumar Narottamdas Gandhi (DIN: 01497163, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from 14" June, 2021 by the Board of Directors and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General
Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") and Article 160 of the Articles of
Association of the Company and who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a natice in
writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is
hereby appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

5. To approve Split/Sub-division of equity shares of the Company from face value of Rs. 10/- to face value of Re. 1/- per
share.

To considerand, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification( s) the following resolution as aSpecial Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Sections 13, 14, 61, 64 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act") and Rules framed thereunder as amended from time to time or any other law for the time being
in force (including any statutory modification{s) or amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and
the relevant provisions of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India [Listing Oblizations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 and other rules, regulations,
circulars, notifications etc. issued thereunder, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
split/sub-division of each of the existing Equity Share of the Company having face value of Rs, 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each in to
10 (ten) equity shares of face value of Re. 1 /- [Rupee One only] each ranking pari passu in all respects thereby keeping the paid up
capital of the Company intact,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to split/sub-division of equity shares of the Company, face value of Rs, 10/- [Rupees Ten
only) of allissued, subscribed and paid up equity shares of the Company existing on the record date shall stand split / sub-divided
into equity shares of face value of Re, 1/- (RBupee One only] each,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT upon split / sub-division of equity shares, as aforesaid, the existing share certificates in relation to
the existing equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- [Rupees Ten only) each held in physical form shall be deemed to have been
automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the record date and Company may, without requiring the surrender of
existing share certificates directly issue and dispatch the new share certificates of the Company, in lieu thereof, subject to
provisions of the Companies [Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and in the case of members who hold the equity shares
opt to receive the split / sub-divided equity shares in dematerialized form, the split / sub-divided equity shares of face value of Re,
1 (Rupee One only) each shall be credited to the respective beneficiary account of the members with their respective depository
participants in lieu of existing credits representing the equity shares of the Company before split / sub-division.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to file the necessary e-forms /
returns with Registrar of Companies and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may deem necessary on behalf of the

Company, for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

G. To alter Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association on account of Split/Sub-division of
Equity Shares of the Company:

To considerand, if thowght fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

— & ——
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13, 61, 64 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time or any other law for the time being in force {including
any statutory modification(s) oramendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force] and subject to approval
ofsplit/sub-division of the equity shares by the Members, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for altering the existing capital clause "V" of Memorandum of Association with the following new capital clause "V™;

"V The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs, 6,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six Crores Only) divided into 6,00,00,000 (Six Crore]
Equity Sharesof Re. 1/~ (Rupee One Only ) each.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions, ifany, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder and subject to approval of split/sub-division of the equity shares by the Members, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for altering the existing article clause "3" of Articles of
Association with the following new article clause "3";

"SHARE CAPITALAND VARIATION OF RIGHTS:

3. The Authorized Shure Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,00,00,000/- { Rupees Six Crores only) divided into 6,00,00,000 {Six Crores)
Equity Shares af Re. 1/~ [Rupee One anly) each, with power to increase, reduce or madify the Capital for the time being into several
classes and attech thereto respectively such preferential, deferred, special or gualified rights, privileges, or conditions as may be
determined by of i accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company to vary, modify or abrogate such rights, privileges, or
conditions in such manner as may be parmitted by the Act or be these Articles af the Compony for the time being.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to do
all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required or considered necessary orincidental thereto.

7. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31" March, 2022,
To considerand, if thought fit, to pass with or withoutmodification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), the remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee, payable during the financial year 2021-
22 to M/s. V. B. Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants, (Membership No.49992, Firm Registration No. 004861) appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the andit of the cost records of the Company for the financial vear ending 317
March, 2022, be paid the remuneration as set outin the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution and matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto.”
By Order of the Board of Directors
INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LTD
Pravin Chavan
Company Secretary
Mumbai: 14" June, 2021
NOTES:

1. In view of Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its Circular dated January 13, 2021, read
together with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 20220, and Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI™)
vide its Circulars dated May 12, 2020 and dated January 15, 2021 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Circulars™)
permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM" /"Meeting") through Video Conferencing [VC) facility or Other
AudioVisual Means [0AVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue and prescribed the procedure for
the same. In compliance with the Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™), Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”], the AGM of the Company is being
held though VC/0AVM, The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.
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2 Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a members of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant Lo
the Circulars through VC/0AVM, the requirement of physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in
terms of the Circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and hence the
proxy form, attendance slip and route map of AGM are not annexed to this notice,

3. Institutional /Corporate shareholders [i.e. other than individuals /HUF/NRI etc.] are required to send the Board Resolution
together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized representative(s) at email id
compliancesfficer@indoborax.com with copy marked to https://instavote linkintime.co.in Such authorization shall contain

necessary authority in favour of its authorized representatives to attend the AGM,

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Saturday, 217 August, 2021 to Saturday, 28"
August, 2021 (both days inclusive), in connection with the ensuing AGM and the payment of dividend.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholdings, as maintained under Section 170 and Register
of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested as maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and all other
documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode during the AGM. All the relevant
documents referred to in the accompanying Notice calling the AGM are available for inspection through electronic mode.
Members are requested to write to the Company Secretary for inspection of the said documents.

i, The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved by the members at the AGM, payment of such dividend
subject to deduction of tax at source will be paid after 1" September, 2021, as under:

aj To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in electronic form as per the data as may be made available by the National
Securities Depository Limited and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited as of the close of the business hours on 20"
Aupust, 2021;

b) To all shareholders in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to transfers in respect of complete and valid
requestlodged with the company on or before the close of business hours on 20 August, 2021,

7. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”] setting out material facts concerning the
business under [tem Nos. 4 to 7 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26[4) and 36(3) of
the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") and Secretarial
Standards on General Meetings {55-2] issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of directors seeking
appointment,/re-appointment at this AGM are also annexed.

8. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of Statutory Auditors for ratification by members at every Annual
General Meeting has been done away with vide notification dated 7" May, 2018, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
Accordingly no resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors, who were appointed in the Annual

General Meeting held on 19" August, 2017,

In compliance with MCA and SEBI Circulars, electronic copy of the Annual Report and this notice are being sent hy e-mail to those
shareholders whose e-mail addresses have been made available to the Company /Depository participants. Members may note
that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also available on the Company’s website wwwindoborax.com and disseminated
on the wehsite of Link Intime  www.linkintime.co.in Members who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to
register the same with their Depository Participants in the case shares are held by them in e¢lectronic form and the members

holding shares in physical mode who have still not registered their email 1D with the Company can temporarily get their email
ID's registered with the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Apents, Link Intime India Private Limited, by using link
htrps:/ Mlinkintime.co.in /emailreg /email registechtml
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9. Members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit their Permanent Account Number [PAN) to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents viz. Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 Park, L. B. 5 Marg, Vikhroli [West), Mumbai - 400 083, as
mandated by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEEI] for every participants in securities market.

Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to submit their PAN to their respective DPs with whom they are
maintaining their demataccounts, as mandated by the SEBI for every participantsin securities market,

1, The members are requested to update their email IDs, mobile numbers, bank details atlink provided. The online link for updating
above details is https: / /linkintime.co.i ilr i i
11. In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members

althe Company will be entitled to vote.

12. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared up to financial year 2012-13, from time to time on due
dates, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund [IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to provisions of
Investor Education and Protection Fund {Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has uploaded the
details of unpaid and unclaimed amount lying with the Company as on 26" September, 2020 [the date of last Annual General
Meeting) on the website of the Company,

Members are requested to note that, dividends if not encashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to
Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund (1EPF), The
shares in respect of such unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the demat account of the [EPF Authority. Inview
af this, members are requested to claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline. The Members, whose
unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to |[EPF Authority, may claim the same by making an application to the I[EPF
Authority in web Form No, IEPF-5 avallable on www.iepfgowin. For detalls, please refer to corporate governance report which is
a partofthis Annual Report.

13. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend paid or distributed by the Company after April 1, 2020, shall be taxable in the hands of
shareholders and the Company shall be required to deduct tax at sources (TDS) at the prescribed rates from the dividend to be
paid to shareholder, subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing AGM. The TDS rates may be vary depending on the
residential status of the shareholder and the documents submitted to the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly declaration in Form
15G/15H, to avail the benelit of non-deduction of tax at source be submitted at link

ttps:/ flinkintime.co.in /formsreg /submission-of-form-15g-15hhtml. The shareholders can download Form 15G/15H, 10F
from link https://wwwlinkintime co.in/client-downloads html. The TDS instructions on dividend distribution is given in

Annexure 1 to this notice,

14: As per regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, securities of listed companies can only be transferred in dematerialized form, with
effect from 17 April, 2019, except in case of request of transmission or transposition of securities. In view of the above and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in physical
form are urged for converting their holding to demat form, Members may contact the Link Intime India Private Limited for any
assistancein thisregard.

15. Members holding shares in electronic mode may note that bank particulars registered against their respective depository
accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, cannot
act on any request received directly from the members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or
hank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participants (DP) by the members,
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1a. MNon Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, immediately of any

change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement, their bank account maintained in India with
complete name, branch, account type, account number and address ofthe bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR Code, as applicable
ifswch details were not furnished earlier.

17: Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts orany matter to he discussed at the AGM are requested to write to

the Company at least seven (7} days before the AGM through email at complianceofficer@indoborax.com. The same will be

replied by the Company suitably.

18. Members holding sharves in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to their DPs
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to advise any
change in their address orbank mandates to the Registrar & Transfer Agent M /s, Link Intime India Private Limited.

19, M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, Mumbai has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting
process in fairand transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will after the conclusion of the e-voting at the meeting, scrutinize the votes cast at the meeting and votes cast
through remote e-voting, make a consolidated scrutinizers reportand submit the same to the Chairman.

The result of the e-voting will be dedlared within 2 worldng days of the conclusion of meeting and the same, along with
consolidated scrutinlzer’s report will be placed on Company's website www.indoborax.com and on the webslte of Link Intime
India Private Limited. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company

are listed.
20. The instructions for shareholders for e-voting are as under:
15 The voting period beging on 25" August, 2021 (9:00 am IST) and ends on 27" August, 2021 (5:00 pm 1ST). During this period

shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20™ August,
2021 may casttheirvote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Link Intime for voting thereafter,

2. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the companies shall
be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8,
2020, Circular No.17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will thus
be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (0AVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the
ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration]) Rules, 2014 {as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated January 13, 2021, April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the
Company is providing [acility of remote e-voting Lo its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Link Intime India Private Limited (Link Intime) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e<Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as
well as the e-voting system on the date ofthe AGM will be provided by Link Intime.

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/0AVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of
the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Motice. The facility of participation at the AGM through YC/OAVM will
be made available to at least 1000 memberson first come first served basis. This will notinclude large Shareholders
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(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chalrpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committeg,
Audivors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/0AVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum under Section 103 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

6. Pursuantto MCA Circular No. 14 /2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members
is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives
of the members such as the President of Tndia or the Governor of a State or body corporate canattend the AGM through VC/0AVM
and cast their votes through e-voting.

7. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.indoborax.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the
Stock Exchange e BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of Link Intime
{agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. https: / /instavote.linkintime.co.in.

8. The AGM has been convened through VC/0AVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No.
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020,

Remute E—"Jntl g nstructions for sharehull:ler pust -::Ilange in_the Lu-g:i.l:l mechanism for Individual shareholders holding

Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode can vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants only post 9"
June, 2021.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts te access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode/ physical mode is given below:
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

® [fyouare already registered for NSDL [DeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hittps:/ /eservicesnsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile, Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” whichis available under'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. You
will have to enter yvour User 1D and Password,

®  After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

® [fthe user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register Is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register
Online for [DeAS*Portal orclick athttps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb /ldeasDirectReg.jsp

®  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:/ fwww.evotingnsdlcom/ either ona
Personal Computeror ona mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login® which is available
under "Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open, You will have to enter your User 1D {i.e. your sixteen digit demat
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voling service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

® Existing user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and password. Option will be made

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication, The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
web.cdslindia. i in orwww.edslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

®  After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu, The Menu will have links of e-Voting
service provider Le. NSDL, KARVY, LINK NTIME, CDSL. Click on e<Voting service provider name to cast your vole,

®  [ftheuserisnot registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https:/ fweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi. /Registration /EasiRegistration

®  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account Mumber and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTF on registered Mobile & Email as recorded
in the demat Account. After successtul authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP where the E Voting is in

Progress.

Individual Shareholders [holding securities in dematmode] & login through their depository participants
® You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

® (nce login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting vour vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME.
1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https: //instavote.linkintime.co.in

- Click on "Sign Up" under'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following details: -

A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the
Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN] (Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository
Participant {(DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOL: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (D01 (As recorded with your DP / Company -in DD/MM /YYYY
format]

D. BankAccount Number: Enter vour Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with yvour DB/ Company,

® Shareholders/ memboers holding shares in physical form but have notrecorded 'Cand 'D°, shall provide their Folio numberin "D
above

b g Setthe password ofyour choice [The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at leastone special Character (@14 $&), at
leastone numeral, atleast one alphabet and atleast one capital letter).

- Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated),

2. Click on 'Login’ under 'SHAREHOLDER' tah,

3. Enter your User 1D, Password and Image Verificatlon (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 'Submit’,

4. Aftersuccessful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select "View' icon.

Gt E-voting page will appear.

[ Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option "Favour / Against' [If you wish to view the
entire Resolution details, click on the "View Resolution’ file link).

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on "Submit'. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to

confirm yvourvote, click on "Yes', else to change yourvote, click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vote.
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Institutional shareholders:
Institutional shareholders (e, other than Individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-veting system af

LITPL at https: / finstavotelinkintime.co.dn and register themselves as "Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body'. They are
also required to uplead a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution fauthority letter /power of attorney etc. together

with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the 'Custodian / Mutual Fund /
Corporate Body' login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same,

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, have forgotten the

password:
o Clickon'Login' under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and [urther Click "forgot password?'
o EnterUserlD,select Mode and Enter Image Verification [CAPTCHA) Code and Click on "'Submit’.

® [ncaseshareholders/ membersis having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address.
® Sharcholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the

Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last fourdigits) etc. as mentioned above.
® The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#%&%), at least one numeral, at least one

alphabetand at least one capital letter,
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password:

Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use Forpet User 1D and Forget Password option

available atabovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

& ILis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password

confidential.
» Forshareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained

inthis Notice,
»  During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) fora

particular”Event”,

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:
In case shareholders/ members holding securities In demat mode have any technical issues related to login through Depository

L.e. NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login Type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
holding seécurities in demat | requestat evoting@nsdleooe.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990and 1800 22 4430

mode with NSDL

Shareholders
in demat

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdeskevoting@edslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-
23058542-43.

Individual
holding securities
maode with CDSL

hareholders & evoting service

rovideris LINKINT
In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries regarding e-vating, they

may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQs') and InstaVote e-Voling manual available at hitps://instavotelinkinlime.co.in,
under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contacton: - Tel: 022 -4918 6000,

&
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Process and Manner for Attending the Annual General Meeting thro InstaMeet:
Openthe internetbrowser and launch the URL: https: / finstameet.linkintime.co.in
- Select the "Company” and 'Event Date' and reglister with vour following details: -

A, Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No
® Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demataccountshall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D
® Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digit Client 1y
® Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number [PAN] (Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository
Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. Maohile No.: Enter vour mobile number
. Email 1D: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP /Company.
s Click "Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).

Please refer the instructions annexure for the software requirements and kindly ensure to install the same on the device which would be
used to attend the meeting. Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet

Support Desk forany support on the dedicated number provided to you in the instruction/ InstaMeeT website.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1, Shareholders who would like Lo express their views/ask questions during the meetling may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request from their registered email address in advance at least 5 (five] days prior to meeting mentioning their
name, demat account number/Folio no., email id, mobile number at email id complianceofficer@indoborax.com. The
shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send thelr queries in advance 5 (five) days priorto

the meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile no., at

complianceofficer@indoborax.com. These queries will be replied to by the Company suitably by email. The company reserve the
rightto restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM,

2. Shareholders will receive "speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting,

3. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

4, Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of
your device,

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial number for
speaker

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have not exercised

their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1. OntheShareholders VC page, click onthe link fore-Voting "Cast your vote”.

2. Enteryour 16 digit Demat Account No, / Folio Mo. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received
during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit’,

3. Aftersuccessfullogin, youwill see "Resolution Description” and against the same the option *Favour/ Against” forvoting.

4.  Castyour vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour /Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares {which represents no. of

votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour / Against’.
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5: Alter selecting the appropriate option i.e: Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on "Save". A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on "Back™ and
accordingly modify your vote,

. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, vou will nat be allowed to modify or change your vote subsegquently.

Naote: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting facility during the meeting, Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the
Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they
will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Sharcholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband For better
experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting,

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio /Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. 1tis therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fl
or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any gueries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on; - Tel: 022-49186175. Annexure
suidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India Pvt, Ltd.: InstaMEET
For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India PvL. Ltd. InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who are
registered as speakers for the eventare requested to download and install the Webex application in advance by following the instructions
asunder:

a] Please download and install the Webex application by clicking on the link https: / Sfwwwowebex com Sdownloads.html /

ar

b} [fyou do notwant to download and install the Webex application, you may join the meeting by following the process mentioned
asunder:

Step-1 Enter your first name and emall id and click on Join Now.

1{A]) fyou have already installed the Webex application on your device, join the meeting by clicking on Join now.

1(B} if Webex application is not installed, a new page will appear giving you an option to either Add Webex to chrome or run

temporary application,

Click on run temporary application, an exe file will be downloaded. Click on this exe file to run the application and to join the meeting

by clicking on Join Now:,

STATEMENT PURSUANT TOSECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 201 3.

As required under section 102 of the Companies Act, ("Act”}, the following explanatory statement set out all material facts relating to the
businessunder ltemnos, 4 to 7 of the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 4

Appointment of Mr. Jayeshkumar Narottamdas Gandhi (DIN-01497163) as a Director of the Company.

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors appointed Mr Javeshkumar
Marottamdas Gandhi (DIN-01497163), as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 14" June, 2021. Pursuant to Section
161(1) af the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and Article 160 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr, Jayeshkumar N. Gandhi
holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director. The Company has received a notice
pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, from member signifying his intention to propose the appointment of Mr. Jayeshkumar N. Gandhiasa
Director of the Company.
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Mr: Jayeshkumar M. Gandhi, 65 holds bachelor degree in commerce from Mumbai University. Mr Jayeshlkumar Gandhi previously served
as General Manager of Nirmal Metal Ltd. He is having 25 years of experience in accounts and tax consultancy practice in MSME industry
and general administration.

The profile of Mr, Jayeshkumar N. Gandhiis provided in the Annexure I to this notice.
The Board of Directors is confident that his vast knowledge and varied experience will be great value to the Company and hence
recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out atitem no. 4 of this notice for your approval,

None of the Directors, key managerial personnel or their relative except Mr. Jayeshkumar Gandhi and his relative, are interested,
financially orotherwlse, in resolution set out atitem No.4 of this Notice.

ltemNo.5
To approve Split/Sub-division of equity shares of the Company from face value of Rs. 10 /- per share to face value of Re. 1/- per

share.

The equity shares of the Company are listed on B5SE Limited and is actively trading. In order to improve the liquidity of the Company's
equity shares and to make such shares affordable to the small investors and thereby encouraging their participation, the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on Monday, 14" June, 2021 considered and approved the split / sub-division of equity shares of the
Company from the existing 1 [one} equity share of face value of Bs. 10 /- (Rupees Ten only) each into 10 {ten) equity shares of face value of
Re, 1/- (Rupee One only) each ranking pari passu in all respects subject to the approval of members and other statutory authorities as may
berequired. The record date of the aforesaid split / sub-division of equity shares will be fixed after approval of members is obtained.

The provisions of Section 61 of the Companies Act, 2013, requires the Company to seek approval of members for the purpose of split / sub-
division of equity shares. Accordingly, Special Resolution as set outin item no. 5 is submitted to the members for their consideration and

approval.

Further description showing full details of split / sub-division of equity shares is as below:

o Particulars Description
No
1 | Split Ratio 1:10, i.e. Existing One (1) equity share of face value of Bs, 10/- each to be split into

ten (10} equity shares of face value Re. 1/- each

2 Rationale behind the split | In order to improve the liguidity of the Company’s equity shares and to make
equity shares more affordable to the investors.
3 | Pre and Post share capital structure

Type of Capital Pre Post
No of | Face | Total share | Noofshares | Face Total share
shares value | capital (in value capital (in Rs)
(inRs) | Rs) (in Rs)
Authorised share capital 60,00,000 10 6,00,00,000 &,00,00,000 2 6,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed 32,28,000 10 3.22,80,000 3,22,80,000 1 3,22,80,000
Issued, Subscribed and | 3209000 10 3,20,90,000 3,20,90,000 1 3.20,90,000
paid up capital
4 | Expected Lime of | 2-3 months after obtaining shareholder's approval
completion

5 | Class of share which are | Equity shares
split / sub-divided

6 | No. of shareholders who | Since proposal is for stock split / sub-division, every equity shareholder would get
did not get any shares in | shares.

consolidation and  their
pre-consolidation
shareholding
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MNone ofthe Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
inthe Resolutions, except to the extent of equity shares held by them in the Company.

Item no. 6

To alter Capital Clause of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association on account of Split/Sub-division of Equity
Shares of the Company:

The Company pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder, intends to alter the capital
clause "V" ol Memorandum of Assoctation and Article No. "3" of Articles of Association due to change in face value of existing 1 equity
share of Rs. 10/- each into 10 equity shares of face value of Re. 1/- each. In view of this, the Company intends to broad base its capital for
easy affordability of equity shares to investors and thereby improving its Hguidity.

Pursuant to provisions of Sections 13 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, alteration of capital clause of Memorandum and of article clause
of Articles of Association of the Company requires approval of shareholders by way of special resolution and hence the Board
recommends the special resolution assetoutin item no. 6 ofthis notice for approval by the shareholders.

A copy of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Assoclation along with proposed amendments will be open for inspection by the
Members at the registered office of the Com pany during the business hours on all working days upto date ol this meeting,

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their relatives, or any other officials of the Company in any way, financially or otherwise
are concerned orinterested in the said resolution

Itemno.7
To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31" March, 2022,

The Board, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditor M/s. VLB
Modi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 004861, Membership No. 49992] to conduct the audit of the cost records
relating to a boron products & other chemicals of the Company for the financial year ending 31" March, 2022 with audit fees of Rs.
50,000/- plus goods and service tax as applicable and reimbursement of actual expenses as incurred by them in connection with the
aforesaid audit.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration
pavable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the

members ofthe Company,

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at ltem no. 7 of the Notice for ratification of
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ended 31" March, 2022,

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/ their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in this resolution,

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Ivem no. 7 for approval of Members,
By Order of the Board

For Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd

Pravin Chavan
Company Secretary

Mumbai; 14" June, 2021

Registered Office: 302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz [West), Mumbal =400 054
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Annexure | to Notice dated 14" June, 2021

In pursuance of the Regulations 26(4) & 36(3]) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements] Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standards-2 issued by the 1C51, details of directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting are as follows:

Mame

Sajal [ain [DIN-00314855)

Mr. Jayeshkumar N, Gandhi (DIN-01497163)

Date of Birth, Age

0g/06/1967, 54 Years

14/06/1956, 65 Years

MNationality Indian Indian

Date of appointment as 26/05/2008 14/06/2021
Director

Date of appointment as Chief | 31/03/2015 WA
Financial Officer

Designation Managing Director & CFO Director
Qualification B. Com B.Com

Experience

Mr. Sajal Jain has almost three
decades of experience in the Boric
Acid industry. He has been
associated with the company since
1= April, 1990

He has worked as General Manager with
Nirmal Metal Ltd for 12 years. He is having
25 vears” experience in the field of tax
consultancy and general administration

Expertise in specific
functional area

He iz responsible for the managing
the affairs of the Company,
procurement of imported material,
operational functions of plant,
finance and administration.

He iz having 25 years' experience in the field
of tax consultancy and general
administration in MSME industry.

Terms & Conditions of
appointment/eontinuation of
Directorship and dDetails of
remuneration sought to be
patd

Managing Director lable to retire
by rotation, Remuneration Same as
per shareholder's approval by way
of special resolution through postal
ballot dated 14 January, 2021

Mon-Executive Director liable to retire by
rotation, Sitting Fees in accordance with
applicable provisions of law. as per Company
policy.

Directorships held other MIL MIL
Public Companies

Chairperson of Board of NIL NIL
Committees

Member of Board Audit Committee & Corporate NIL
Committees Social Responsibility Committee

Mo. of meetings attended Gof6 MA
during the vear

Shareholding in Company as 8,95,389 Shares NIL
on 31L.03.2021

Date of first appointment on 2ith May, 2008 144 June, 2021
the Board

Remuneration drawn during Directors Remuneration Rs, 333.65 | NIL
the year Lakhs

Relationship with other Mr Sajal Jain, is a husband ol Mrs. MNone

Directors, Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company

Sreelekha jain, Non-Executive
Director
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Annexure Il to Notice dated 14" June, 2021

TS Instructions on Dividend Distribution

Companies paying dividend are required to deduct TDS at the applicable tax rates {unless otherwise exempted. TDS rates is 10% for the
resident members with valid PAN, 20% for resident members without PAN or invalid PAN and rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act,
1961("the IT Act") or tax treaty, read with Multilateral Instruments, If applicable, for non-resident members). No TDS is applicable if the

dividend payable toresident individual members is fess than Rs. 5,000/ - p.a.
Section 20648 has been introduced by the Finance Act, 2021, whereby T'DS will be higher of the following:

I, Twicethe rate specified in the relevant provision ofthe IT Act; or
ii. Twicethe rate orratesin force; or
jii. The rateis 5%

In case person has not filed his/her Return of Income for each of the two preceding Hinancial years and the aggregate of TDSin his/her case
is Rs. 50,000 /- or more ineach of these financial vears. The aggregate amount of TDS of Rs. 50,000/ - ina year is not limited to TDS only on
dividend income received by the member but will include all TDS/TCS transactions of the member during the relevant financial year.
These provisions will be effective from July 1, 202 1. The status of filing of Return of Income by the members would be verified from the
funcrionality provided by the Indian Income Tax Authorities, The Company would solely rely on the information available on the Income
Tax portal in this regard.

In order to provide exemption from TDS or apply lower rate of DS or consider benefitof relevant Double Taxation Aveidance Agreement
(“DTAN"} with India as may be applicable, the documents prescribed for each category of member (as per the eligibility) must be uploaded
on the portal of RTA at https:/ flinkintime.co.in /formsreg/submission-of-form-15g-15h.html. If the documents are found in accordance

with the provisions of the [T Act the same shall be considered while deducting the taxes.
If the dividend Income Is assessable to tax in the hands of a person other than the reglstered member as on Record Date, the reglstered

member is required to furnish declaration to the Company containing the name, address, PAN, beneficiary account no. {16 digit), number
of shares of person to whom TDS credit is to be given and reasons for giving credit to such person on or before 20" August, 2021 (05:00 pm

I5T).

1. Residentindividual member
a) Form 15G or Form 15H;
1] Any otherdocuments as prescribed under the T Act for lower rate of TDS; and
c} PAN or documentary evidence if you are exempt from obtaining PAN.

2. Residentnon-individual member (Company, Firms, HUE AOP, Trust)
a) Lower deduction of TDS certificate for the financial year 202 1-22, if any, obtained from the Income Tax authaorities; and
b} PAN

3. Non-residentmember
All the documents given below should be attested by self /authorised signatory:

al Copy of Tax Residency Certificate ["TRC") for the financial year 2021-22 obtained from the revenue authorities of the
country of residence;

7] Form 10F for financial year 2021-22;

c) Self—declaration of Beneficial Ownership;

d) Self-declaration for nothaving Permanent Establishment in Indiain accordance with the applicable Tax Treaty;

e) PAN; and

) Any other documents as prescribed under the 1T Act for lower rate of TDS, if applicable.

The Company is not obliged to apply the beneficial DTAA rates at the time of tax deduction fwithholding on dividend amounts. Application
ofbeneficial DTAA rate shall depend upon the completeness and satisfactory review by the Company, of the documents submitted by non-

resident members.

— & —
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To The Members of Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting 407 Annual Report of Inde Borax & Chemicals Limited along with the Audited
Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31" March, 2021,

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2021 is summarized below :

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
31-3-2021 31-3-2020 | 31-3-2021 31-3-2020
Revenue 14,415.32 11,525.48 | 1441532 11,525.48
Other Income 410.08 548.09 36398 509.38
Total Income 14,825.40 12,073.57 | 14,779.30 12,034.86
Profit before Depreciation & Taxation 4,808.97 2,412.06 4,761.88 2,372.87
Less : Depreciation 107.46 128.79 107.46 138.46
Provision for Taxation 123692 536.80 1237.78 547.34
Deferred Tax (9.20) (7.52) (9.20) (7.52)
Profit after Depreciation & Taxation 3,473.79 1,753.99 3,425.85 1,694.60
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 85.38 56.72 85.38 56.72
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear 3,559.17 1,810.71 3511.22 1,751.32
Balance brought forward from previous year 11,965.18 10,377.61 12000.25 10,482.04
Profil available for appropriation 15,524.35 12,188.32 | 15,511.47 12,233.36

Less : Appropriations

Dividend 64.18 48.14 64.18 48.14
Tax on Dividend - - - 997
Transfer to General Reserve 350.00 175.00 350.00 175.00
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 15,110.17 11,965.18 | 15,097.29 12,000.25

COvVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has emerged as a global challenge creating disturbance across the world, forcing governments to enforce
lockd own of all economic activity, The physical and emaotional well-bheing of employees continues to be top priority of the Company.

The Company has restarted manufacturing facility in phased manner from 3" May, 2020 which was close down from 24™ March, 2020,
pursuant to the receipt of the necessary permission from the government authorities. Company is adhering to the COVID 19 puidelines
issued by the Government of India, the state government and local authorities.

As the business situation is very dynamic, the company is clesely monitoring it. Though we do hope the business situation should

normalize after 2" gquarter.
DIVIDEND

Based on the Company’s performance, the Directors have recommended dividend of Rs, 10,00 per equity share of Rs. 10/- each on
32,009,000 Equity Shares, itapproved by the members, would involve a cash outllow of Rs. 320,20 Lakhs,

TRANSFERTO RESERVES

During the year your company has transferred Rs. 350.00 Lakhs to General Reserve out of the amount available for appropriation and an
amountofRs. 15,110.17 Lakhsis proposed to be retained in the profitand loss account.

STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS

On standalone basis, sales for the financial vear 2020-21 stood at Rs. 14,415.32 lakhs, higher by 25.07% over the previous year sales of Rs.
11,525.48 Lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was Rs. 480897 lakhs, which was higher by 99.37% over EBTD of Rs. 2,412.06
Lakhsin 2019-20. The profit after tax for the year was Rs. 3,473.79 lakhs, which was higher by 98.05% over the PAT of Bs. 1,753.99 lakhsin

2019-20.
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On consclidated basis, sales for the financial year 2020-21 stood at Rs. 14,415.32 lakhs, higher by 25.07% over the previous year of Rs.
11,525.48 lakhs. Earnings before tax and depreciation was RBs. 4,761.88 lakhs, which was higher by 100.68 % over EBTD of Rs. 2,372.87
Lakhs in 2019-20. The profit after tax for the year was Rs.3,425.84 lakhs, which was higher by 102,16% over the PAT of Rs. 169460 lakhs
in2019-20,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Company has only one wholly owned subsidiary, Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. There are no associate companies or joint
ventures companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”). There has been no material change in the
natureofbusiness ofthe subsidiary.

During the year Company has invested in subsidiary Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited, In 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
atthe premium of Rs.929/- pershare,

As pursuant to provision of Section 129{3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of financial statements ofthe Company's
subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary which form part of Annual Report have been prepared in
accordance with section 129(3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013. Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 317 March, 2021 along
with report of the auditors thereon are attached herewith. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, separate audited
financial statement of the subsidiary is available on the website of the company wwww.indoborax.com.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The delails in respect of the internal financial control and their adequacy are included In Management Discussion & Analysis, which isa
part of this report.

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD

Six meetings of the board were held during the year. For details of meetings of Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report,
whichisa partofthisreport,

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

Details of all the committees along with their composition, name of the members, meetings held during the year and attendance are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of this Report,

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, Lo the best ol their knowledge and ability, confirm thal :

(n in the preparation of the annual accounts; the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material
departures;
[i1] they have selected such accounting pelicies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the
profit of the Company forthat period;

[iii) they have taken properand sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
ofthe Act forsafeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

[iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v} they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls are adeguate
and operating effectively.

[wi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

— ——
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Due to COVID-19 Company lost its founder and Managing Director Late Shri. Sushil Kumar |ain on 18" October, 2020, The Board placeson

record its appreciation for their invaluable contribution and guidance. The company had initiated steps to appoint a new director for

filling up the vacancy on account of the tragic passing away of Shri 5K Jain, however due to surge in the second wave of Covid-19

pandemic, it is very difficult to have a physical one to one meetings with identified candidate for closing the open position before 317
ih

March, 2021, However, Company has appointed Shri. Jayeshkumar N. Gandhi as an Additional Director, on 14" June, 2021 subject to
approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

Mr: Sajal Jain, retires by rotation and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 149 the Companies Act, 2013 the Independent Directors have submitted declarations that each of
them meet the criteria ofindependence prescribed under sub-section (6] of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)
(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Dizclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There has been no change in the circumstances
affecting their status asindependentdirectors of the Company.

During the vear under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company
other than sitting fees.

Pursuant to provisions of section 203 of the Act, the key managerial personnel ofthe company are Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director & Chief
Financial Officer and Mr. Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary.

BOARD EVALUATION

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees and individual directors pursuant
to the provisions of the Actand SEBI Listing Regulation.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as board
composition and structure, effectiveness of board process, iInformation and functioning ete. The performance of the committees was
evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from committee members on the basis of criteria such as composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings elc,

In separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of the non-independent directors, performance of the board as a whole and
the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of the executive directors and non-executive directors.

The hoard and nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of criteria
such as contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings preparedness on the issues to be discussed
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in the meeting, etc.

Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy] of the Company and initiatives undertaken by the Company on
CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure 1 of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, The details about the CSR committee, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which form

part of this report. The CSR policy isavailable on the website of the company http:/ /www.indohorax.com/CSR-Policy.php
VIGILMECHANISM

The Company has formulated whistle blower policy for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns regarding unethical
behavior, actual orsuspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conductand Ethics Policy. The said mechanism also provides for
adequate safeguard against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairman of
the Audit Committee in the appropriate or exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of the company was denied access to the Audit
Committee, The Whistle Blower Policy have been disclosed on website of the Company at hittp:/ /www.indoborax.com/Whistel-
Blower-Policy.php

— & ——
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and monitor risk management
plan for the Company. The committee is responsible for monitoring the reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its
effectiveness. The Audit committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risk and controls. The major risk identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically address through mitigating actions on continuing basis. The development and
implementation of risk management policy has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms partofthis report,

ENVIRONMENT HEALTHAND SAFETY, PROTECTION OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally clean and safe operations. Company conducts its operations in such
mannersoas W ensure safety of all concerned, compliances ol environmental regulations and preservation ol natural resources.

The company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of Sexual harassment at workplace and has duly constituted
an Internal Complaint Committee in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thercunder. During the vear company has not received any complaints on sexual harassment.
There have been no complaintsin other areas.

PARTICUALRS OF EMPLOYEES

The Information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companles (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are given below:

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company and percentage
increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year:

Ratio of median | % increase in
Name of the Directors remuneration remuneration in

the financial year

Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain, Managing Director (upto 55.09 17.76
18.10.2020)

Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director (w.ef 1.12.2020) & Chief *130.91 *179.84
Financial Officer

Mr. Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary 11.70 743

Nate®: The remuneration is not comparahle as Mr. Sajal Jain, has been re-designated as MD and his remuneration changed from 17
December, 2020,

Company has not paid any remuneration to non-executive directors except sitting fees.
I} The percentage increase inthe median remuneration of the employees in the financial year: 0.52%
¢]  Thenumberofpermanentemployees on the rolls ofthe company: 102

d) Awverage percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average annual increase was around 4.65%. However during the year, the increase in the total employee benefits is
approximately 12.16%,

The managerial remuneration and commission are as per the member's resolution. The managerial commission is purely based
on the performance of the Company. During the year the overall performance of the Company Is very good, hence the managerial
commission which is based on the profitis also increased, During the year there is increase in the managerial remuneration by
98.80 % which is directly linked with the profitand performance of the company. During the year the profit of the company is also
increased by 98,05%.

= @ = |
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e] Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The Company affirms remuneration is as
perthe remuneration policy of the company.

f} ‘Thestatementcontaining names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and particulars of employees as required
under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2} of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel ) RBules,
2014 is provided in annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the members
excluding the aforesaid annexure. In term of section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
The Company's policy on directors appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3]) of the Act, has been
disclosed inthe Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of the Directors Report,

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
The particulars ofloans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The information on the transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h] of the Act read with Rule 8{2} of the Companies
[Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in ADC-2 in Annexure Il and same forms part of this report.

DELISTING OF SECURITIES
The Company had applied for delisting of shares from Kolkatta Stock Exchange in 2005-2006, however, till date the confirmation of
delisting has not been received from Exchange.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy
i)  Energy Conservation Measures taken The Company continues to lay special
it} Utilization of alternate source of energy emphasis on conservation of energy and
itf} Capital Investment on energy conservation eguipment. have laken measures like regular monitoring
of consumption, reduction of transmission
losses and up to date maintenance of systems.
B. Technology Absorption

1. Research & Development
The Company has no specific Research & Development Department, However in house quality control facilities are utilized for
product and processimprovementand updation.

2. Technology Absorption
The Company has not imported any new technology.

. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
a) Earnings 1Ml
b} Ouigo
- Import of Raw Materials : Bs. 5,216.94 lakhs
- Foreign Travel :Rs. - lakhs
- Dthers ' Rs. 015 lakhs

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC
The Company has not accepted any deposit from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from
public was outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
A separate detailed Corporate Governance Report and Certificate of Auditor of vour Company regarding the compliance of the conditions
of Corporate Governance as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015 are annexed to this report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Fursuant to section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 317 March, 2021 is available on the Company's
website viz. www.indoborax.com.

— & ——
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
As per SEBI Listing Regulations, the Corporate Governance Report with the Auditors Certificate thereon, and the Management Discussion
and Analysis are attached, which form part of this Report

The Company has devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the thirty sixth AGM held on 19" August, 2017 the members approved appointment of Pulindra Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants,
[Firm Registration No. 115187W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of that
AGM till the conclusion of forty-first AGM, subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM, if so required under the
Act. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by members at every AGM has been done
away by the Companies {Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from 7" May, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being propesed for
ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM and a note in respect of the same has been included in the Notice for
this AGM.

COMMENTS OF AUDITOR'S REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Auditor's report to the shareholders on the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements for the year ended 317 March,
2021 does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks and therefore does not call for any comments from directors,

Secretarial Audit report is annexed as Annexure [1] to this report, The Secretarial audit report to the shareholders does not contain any
qualification or reservation which has any material adverse effect on the functioning of the company, except the
observation/qualification w.rt. non-fulfilment by March, 2021 of the vacancy created by the sad demise of Mr. Sushil Kumar [ain on the
board of directors of the Company,

The nemination and remuneration committee had successfully finalize a person for the position of director who possessed the core
skills fexpertise/competencies as required in the context of company’s business, however the appointment could not be finalize before
31" March, 2021 due to surge in the second wave of COVID-1% pandemic. Board has appointed Mr. Jayeshkumar N. Gandhi, [DIN-
01497163), as an Additional Director at the hoard meeting held on 14" June, 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The details pertaining to the composition of Audit Committee are included in the Corporate Governance Report, which is part of this
report.

COST AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, qualified Cost Auditors have been appointed to conduct cost
audit for the year under review relating to the products manufactured by the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Shri. Sushil Kumar Jain, founder and Managing Director of the Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd, passed away on 187 October, 2020, The
directors place on record their deep appreciation of his vision, leadership, enormous contribution and his efforts in laying the foundation
of Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd and express deep gratitude to his influential spirit for shaping Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd,

Your Directors thank to the clients, vendors, shareholders & bankers for thelr continued support during the year. Your Directors place on
record their appreciation for the contribution made by employees at all levels especially in this Pandemic situation. Your Company’s
growth has been possible due to their hard work, co-operation & support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Mumbai, Sajol foin
June 14,2021 Managing Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Directors present their report on the specified matters to the extent relevant or within limits thatin their opinion are imposed by the
company’s own competitive position, as under:-

Industry structure and development
No reliable and published datais available specifically on boron products industry. As boron minerals are not found in India, thus the basic
inputs have to be essentially imported.

Opportunity, threats, risks and concerns

Az, the basic input of boron minerals are imported, thus timely availahility of hasic inputs at competitive prices in desired quality,
composition and quantities has been, continues to be and expected to remain a matter of concern, risk and threat. The company is
continuously engaged in exploringand developing alternative sources for imported raw material to minimize the risk,

Segment wise or product-wise performance

The company is operating in a single reportable segment L.e. manufacturing and selling of Chemicals. The disclosures requirement of the
Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 108 "operating Segment” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 ofthe
Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014are not applicable.

Outlook
The domestic market for Boron products is expanding every year and the Company can sell more quantity, as its products are well known
forits quality.

Company had recelved certification with Bureau of Indlan Standard and Is manufacturing boric acld according to the relevant BIS
standard.

Internal control system and their adeguacy

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls to provide reasenable assurance that all assets are safeguarded;
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting record, timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures, transactions are authorized and recorded correctly to ensure compliance with policies and statutes.

Internal control systems have been found to be adequate and commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the company and
arereviewed [rom time to time for further improvement,

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance
The netsales in current year stood at Rs, 14,415.32 Lakhs as compared to Rs.11,525.48 Lakhs in previous year, which is higher by 25.07%
due to better realization.

Human Resources Development & Management
The total permanent employees of the company are 102, There are no other reportable material developments in the matter of human
resources and industrial relations, which were cordial throughoul the year,

Risk and Concerns
The risk faced by the company are raw material risk, quality risk, competition risk, foreign exchange risk, realization risk, cost risk.

The risk management committee has mitigation plan against above risk. Company is continuously engaged in exploring and developing
alternative sources of imported raw material to mitigate the raw material risk. Highest quality parameters are set for the production of the
boron products, also ensure that there should be continuwous supply of material to the customers which will mitigate the quality and
competition risk. To mitigate the foreign exchange risk, company prefers to buy material on receipt of documents. Ifthere is import of raw
material on credit basis, the same are hedged,

— ——
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ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. A brief outline of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy:

Social and environmentresponsibility has always been at the forefront of [ndo Borax & Chemicals Ltd.'s operating philosophy. We
believe that to succeed, an organization must maintain highest standards of corporate behavior towards its employees,
consumers and societies in which it operates, We are in the opinion that CSR underlines the objectives of bringing about

difference and adding values in our stakeholder’s lives.

Indo Borax's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is rooted in the Company's core values of quality, reliability and trust guided

by best practices, and driven by our aspiration for excellence in the overall performance of nurbusiness.

The CSR activities undertaken hy the company within the broad framework of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013. During
the year company has provided financial aid to implementing agency for construction of affordable houses to member of the

trust who are blind, handicapped, deaf, widow, divorcee, mentally challenged, orphans, cancer, dialysis, kidney & HIV patients.

2. The composition of CSR committee: The CSR committee of the directors comprising of Mr. Arun Sureka, Chairman of the

Committee, Mr. Sajal Jain, Mr Govind Parmar and Mrs. Sreelekha Jain

3 Average net profitofthe company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR: Bs. 2,198.99 Lakhs
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): Hs. 43.98 Lalhs
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 43.98 Lakhs
b) Amount unspent: NIL
¢} Mannerin which the amount spent during the financial year: Attached

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit ofthe last three financial years or any
partthereof, the company shall provide the reason for not spending the amount in its Board report:

During the year, Company has spent more than two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial yvears.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company:

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the C5R policy are in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the

Company.
Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Managing Director Chairman, CSR Committee

14" June, 2021

— &
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Details of amount spent on CSR activities during the financial year 2020-21

(R=. in Lakhs)

Sr. | CSRproject | Item from | Projector | Amount Maode of Cumulative | Amount Spent
No. | or activity the list of programs spent for implement | expenditure | director
identified/ activities in | (1) Local the Project | ation- up to the through
schedule Area or or Direct reporting Implementing
VII of the other (2) programs (Yes/Mo) period Agency-CSR
Act specify Registration
the State Number
and
district
where
praoject
was
undertaken
1. Providing (1ii ) Mumbai, 44.00 No 44 00 | Implementing
affordable Maharash agency -
housing to tra CSRO0003196
member of
the trust
who are
blind,
handicapped
deaf, widow,
divorcee,
mentally
challenged,
arphans,
cancer,
dialysis,
kidney &
HIV patients.
Total | Spending | onCSR 44.00 44.00
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ANNEXURE Il TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FORM NO. AOQC -2

| Pursuant to Clause [h) of sub-section (3] of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 8{2) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts farrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) ofsection 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms- length transactions under third proviso thereto,

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis,
.. Nameofthe related party and nature of relationship: Mot Applicable
il. Nature of contracts orarrangements or transactions: Not Applicable
iti. Duration ofthe contracts/arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable
iv. Salientterms ofthe contracts orarrangements or transactions including value: Not Applicable
v, Justification for entering into such contracts orarrangements or transactions: Not Applicable
vi. Dateofapproval by the Board : Not Applicable
vil. Amount paidas advance, ifany : Not Applicable

vill. Date on which special Resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: Not
Applicable

2. Detailsof material contracts orarrangements or transactions atarm’s length basis.

There were no material contract or arrangement or transactions entered into during the vear ended 31" March, 2021 crossing
materiality threshold of 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company. The details of contracts or arrangement or
transactions at arm's length basis for the vearended 317 March, 2021 is as follows:

. Nameofthe related party and nature of relationship: Mr. Saumya Jain, is son of Mr Sajal Jain, Managing Director and Mrs,

Sreelekha |ain, Non-Executive Director and grandson of Late Mr. 5. K. Jain, Chairman & Managing Director. (up to 18
October, 2020)

. Mature of contracts or arrangements or transactions: Appointed as Business Development Manager.
i, Duration of the contracts/arrangements or transactions: 17 October, 2019 ongoing.

iv. Salientterms ofthe contracis orarrangements or transactions including value: Rs.63.68 Lakhs

v, Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

vi. Dateofapprovalbythe Board: 29" May, 2019

vil. Amount paidasadvance,ifany : Nil

vii. Date on which special Resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: 14
September, 2019,

&
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Annexure -I1
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year Ended 31" March, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies [Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

Indo Borax & Chemicals Ltd

CIN: L24100MH1380PLCOZ31TT
302, Link Rosge, Linking Road,
Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited [hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 317 March, 2021, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanismin place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Indo Borax &
Chemicals Limited (“The Company”} for the period ended on 31" March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;
[I. TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’} and the Rules made thereunder;
1. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
V.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEB1 Act') to
the extentapplicable tothe Company :-
a. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India [Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b. TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
¢.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Begulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; and
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities} Regulations, 1998: (not applicahle to the company
as there was no reportable event during the financial year under review)
e. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

VI. Otherlawsspecifically applicable to the company namely:
Water [ Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
Adr [ Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

Indian Boiler Act, 1923 and rules issued thereunder;
The Electricity Act, 2003 and rules issued thereunder

—
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| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Meeting of Board of Directors [55-
1) and Ceneral Meetings (55-2).
i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited read with the SEBI [Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, Listing Agreements etc. mentioned above.

[ further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. However, the vacancy created on demise of Shri. Sushil Kumar fain, on 18" October, 2020 was remained
unfilled ason 31" March, 2021,

Adeguate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board Meeting. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningtul participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously. [ further report that as per the
explanations given to me and the representations made by the management and relied upon by me there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Prasad Parab & Associates
Company Secretaries
Prasad Parab
Mumbai, 14" June, 2021 ACS Mo, 25324, CP No. 10235
UDIN NO. ADZ25324C00047091 2

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure A to Secretarial Auditors’ Report

Ta,
The members,
Indo Borax & Chemicals Lud
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company, My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit

I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the Secretarial records. The verifications was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records.
| believe that the process and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

lhave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events ete.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the
management. My examinations was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
For Prasad Parab & Associates
Company Secretaries

Prasad Parab
Mumbai Proprietor
14" June, 2021 ACS No. 25324, CP No. 10235

UDIN NO. ADZ25324C000470912
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's philosophy is to conduct its affairs in a manner which is transparent, clear and evident to those having dealings
with or having a stake in the Company, namely shareholders, lenders, creditors and employees. The Company's philosophy on Corporate
Governance is thus concerned with the ethics and values of the Company and its Directors, who are expected to act in the bestinterest of
the Company and remain accountable to shareholders and other beneficiaries for theiraction.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under SEB] (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements)
Repulation, 2015, ("SEBI Listing Regulations') as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance,

2, BOARDOFDIRECTORS

The Company has a balance and diverse Board of Directors, which primary takes care of business needs and stakeholders
interest. For the majority of the period of financial year 2020-21, the composition of board was in compliance as per regulation 17 of SEE]
[Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Repulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). However the vacancy created by the sad
demise of Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain on 18" October, 2020, remained unfilled till the yvear end 31" March, 2021, However as on date of this
reportboard has filled the vacancy by appointing Mr Jayeshlkumar N. Gandhi as Additional Director.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1) (b) of the SEBT Listing Regulations and
Section 149(6) of the Act. The maximum tenure of the independent directars is in compliance with the Act. All the independent directors
have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under regulation 16 {1} (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Section 149({6) of the Act.

During the year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the performance of the non-
independent direciors and the board as a whole.

During the financial year 2020-21 the Board of Directors met & times on the following dates: 30-june-2020, 23-july-2020, 08-
Sep-2020,12-Nov-2020,12-Feh-2021 and 22-Mar-2021.

Mame of Director Relations | Category *| Designation Mo. of | Atten | No. of Director] No. of
hip with Board | dance |ships in other] Chair
other Meetings | at last | Boards %Eaﬂisgt
Directors Attended | AGM | (Excluding | nbhers

alternate hip in
Directorship | other
and private, {B:S?rll'fn ;
companies) s

Mr. 5. K. Jain Father of Promoter | Chairman&: 3 Yes Nil Mil
Mr. Sajal & ED Managing
Jain & father Director
inlaw of Mrs)

Sreeclekha
Jain

Mr. Sajal Jain Son of Mr, | E.D Vice- & Yes Mil Nil

SK. Jain Chairman &
#-hushand Dlrentor ai
pE" M 30.11.2020
Sreelekha MD & CFO
Jain wee.f,

1.12.2020

Mrs. Sreelekha Wife of MN.E.D. Director 6 Yes il Nil

Jain Mr. Sajal
Jain &
daughter -
in-law of
Mr. S. K Jain

Mr Arun Sureka None 1 & N.E.D Director & Yes il Nil

Mr. N. K. Mittal MNone | & N.E.D Director 4 Yes Mil Nil

Mr. G.R.Parmar None | & M.E.D Director =] Yes Mil Mil

&




*E.D. - Executive Director, N.E.D - Non Executive Director, | - Independent
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** Includes the Public Company and Foreign Company but exclude Private and Section 8 Company.

The directors familiarization program imparted to Independent Directors are available on the website of the

company www.indoborax.com

Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31" March, 2021 are given below:

Mr. Arun Sureka

Mrs. Sreelekha Jain Mr. Sajal Jain

50

2,07,702 8,95,389

The gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.

During the year Company has lostits founder, promoter Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain on 187 October, 2020,

Board has Appointed Mr. Jayeshkumar Narottamdas Gandhi, as an Additional Director w.e.f. from 14" June, 2021,

subject to approval of members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

The terms and conditions of appointment ofthe Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company.

Code of Conduct

The Board has laid down a code of conduct of Business and Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management staff of

the company and the same is available on company's website. The Board Members and Senior Management staff

have affirmed compliance with the said code of conduct.

Audit Committee;

a) The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing

Regulations, read with Section 177 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

b} Theterms of reference of the audit committee are broadly as under:

o  Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to

ensure thatthe financial statements are correct,

s Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

s Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditers report thereon before

submission to the board forapproval.

* Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for

approval.

o  Approval orany subsequent modification or transactions of the company with related party.

e Fvaluation of internal financial controls.

# Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to repart genuine concerns in such manner as may

be prescribed.

o  [Review the information required as per SEBI Listing Regulations.

¢] Thecomposition of Audit Committee and the details ofthe meeting attended by the Directors are given below:

Name of Member Designation | No. of Committee meetings | Attendance
held
Mr. Arun Sureka Chairman 6
Mr. Narendra K. Mittal | Member (5]
Mr. Govind Parmar Member [
Mr. Sajal [ain Member (3]

&
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During the year under review, Audit Committee met 6 times on the following dates: 30-June-2020, 23-July-2020,
08-5ept-2020, 12-Nov-2020, 12-Feb-2021 and 22-Mar-2021.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
i Pursuant to Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee,

i The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three independent directors’ viz. Mr. Arun Sureka
(Chairman], Mr. N. K. Mittal (Member) and Mr. Govind Parmar (Member].

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee Attendance
meetings held
Mr. Arun Sureka Chairman 1 1
Mr Narendra K Mittal | Member 1 1
Mr. Govind Parmar Member 1 1

Nomination and RBemuneration Committee metonce on 12-Nov-2020.

iii. The broad terms ofthe role ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:
1. Recommend tothe Board its compesition, the setup and composition of the committees.

2. Recommend to board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial and senior managerial personnel.
3. Formulatecriteria for evaluation of every director's performance
4. Devising pelicy on board diversity.
5. Recommend to the board appointment, removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.
6. Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing,
7. Anyother matter as board may decide from time to time,
iv. Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:
The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, The evaluation of Directors carried out on the basis of factors like participation and contribution by
director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, relationship with stakeholders, integrity
and confidentiality and independence of judgmentand behavior,
v, Remuneration Policy:

The remuneration policy of the company enable to attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve results.

The non-executive directors (including independent directors) will receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meeting of
boards or committee thereol, as decided by the committee from time to time subject to the limits defined under the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules.

The remuneration of the Managing Director & Executive Director are determine by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, comprising of three independent directors. The commission payable to Managing
Director & Executive Director is directly linked with the performance of the company. During the year member had
revised and approved the remuneration of Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director with effect from 17 December, 2020, The
commission payable to them is governed by the member's resolution. The commission is payable after approval of
the accounts by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

Annual Remuneration payable to employees comprises two parts- salary component and bonus component based on
the extent of achievement of the individuals and the performance of the business unit.

— & ——
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vi. Directors' Remuneration during 2020-21 {Rs.In Lakhs)
Name of Director | Salary | Benefits| Commiss | Meeting| Total |Service Contract, Notice

& HRA ion Fees Period, Severance
Fees
Late Mr. 5. K. Jain 18.39 7.24 114.78 Nil 140.41 | Contractual-retirement by
rotation
Mr. Sajal Jain 73.60 4.64 255.40 Nil | 333.64 | Contractual-retirement by
rotation *
Mrs. Sreelekha -- -- -- 0.27 0.27 | Retirement by Rotation
Jain
Mr. Arun Sureka -- -- -- 0.51 0.51 -
Mr. N. K. Mittal e - o5 0.30 0.30 -
Mr. G.R. Parmar - - - 0.48 0.48 -

1. The Company has taken Group Gratuity Policy and contribution for the Managing Director & Executive Director, is not
separately determined hence notincluded above.

2. Service contract of the Managing Director Mr. Sajal Jain, is for 5 years w.e.f. 26,05.2018, which may be terminated by
six months' notice by either side.

w

Mr, Sajal Jain, Managing Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
himselffor re-appointment,

Pursuant to Section 178({5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulation, the company
has formed "Stakeholders Relationship Committee”. The Committee specifically looks into the redressal of
Shareholders / Investors Grievances, if any, like grievances not addressed or Non-receipt of Annual Report/dividend
warrants etc.and other related issues.

The compaosition of Shareholders' Grievances Committee and the detalls of the meeting attended by the Directors are

given below:
Name of Member Designation No. of Eﬂmr:il}‘l:e meetings Attendance
MNarendra K. Mittal Chairman 1 1
Arun Sureka Member 1 1
Sreelekha Jain Member 1 1

During the year under review, the Committee met on 12-Feb-2021. At the year-end there were no grievances pending
against company.

*  Numberof Complaints received during the vear ended 31.03.2021 - 4, Number of Complaints not resolved up to 317
March 2021 - Nil, Number of Share Transfers pending as on 31.03.2021 - Nil, Number of Share Transfers pending for
morethan 30 daysason31.03.2021- Nil

= Name& Designation of Compliance Officer- Mr. Pravin Chavan - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies ({Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, committee was formed by the Board of Directors as "Corporate Social Responsibility Committee”.

— & —_—
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The composition of Corporate Social Responsibilicy Committee and the details of the meeting attended by the Directors are

Name of Member Designation No. of Committee meetings held Attendance
Arun Sureka Chairman i 2
Govind Parmar Member 2 2
Sajal Jain Member 2 2
Sreelekha Jain Member 2 2

During theyear under review, the Committee met 2 times on following dates: 12-Nov-2020and on 12-Feb-2021.

7

a)

b)

if.

General Body Meetings:

Annual General Meeting
The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under:

Financial Date Time Ve No. of Sp_f:clal
Year Resolutions

S.N.D.T. University

2017-18 25.08.2018 | 100 p.m. Tuhu, Mumbai 1
S.N.D.T. University

2018-19 14.09.2019 | 1.00 p.m. hih, Mumbai 4
Meeting conducted

2019-20 | 26.09.2020| 1.00 p.m. | throush  VC/OAVM 1
pursuant to MCA
Circular

Postal Ballot

Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the person who conducted the postal ballot exercise,
details of the voting pattern and procedure of postal ballot.

The Company had sought the approval of the shareholders by way of special resolution through notice of postal ballot
dated 4" December, 2020 for revision in remuneration and change in designation of Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director
& Chief Financial Officer of the Company, which was duly passed and the results of which were announced on 14"
January, 2021. Manish Ghia (Membership No. 6252) of Manish Ghia & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries,
was appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the postal ballot process only by voting through electronic means
[remote e-voting) in fair and transparent manner.

Other Disclosures:
There were no transactions of material nature with the Promoters, Directors or the Management, subsidiaries or

relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. For details of related party
transactions refer financial accounts,

There were no instances of non-compliance nor have any penalties, strictures been imposed by Stock Exchange or
SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three years on any matter related to Capital markets, except, the
company has received notice towards non-compliance under regulation 17(1)(c), relating to vacancy created by sad
demise of Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain, was remained unfilled till the year end 31" March, 2021. However company had
complied with the same by appointing Additional director atthe board meeting held on 14" June, 2021.
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iii.  Theboard hasapproved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company's wehsite
http://www.indoboerax.com/images/IBCL-RPT-Policy-01-04-2019.pdf. The related party transactions have heen
approved by the Audit Committee.

iv. ~ The Whistle Blower policy is in place, and it is hereby affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the
audit committee, The said policy has been uploaded on the wehsite of the company.

v.  The Company has also adopted Policy on determination of material subsidiary, which has been uploaded on the

Company's website http://fwww.indoborax.com/images/pdf/Policy-on-Determination-of-Materialily-for-disclosure-of-

events-or-information-1st-April-2019.pdf The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements. It has
fulfilled the following discretionary requirements as prescribed in Schedule 11 of Part E of the SEBI Listing
Regulations:

The auditor's report on statutory financial statements of the company are unmodified.

vi. Thecompany hasadopted a policy on determination of materiality for disclosures.

vii. The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct
applicable to them. The certificate by the Chief Financial Officer and the Managing Director is part ofthis report.

9, Declaration regarding compliance by board members and senior management personnel with the
Company's Code of conduct:
The members of the board and senior management personnel have affirmed the compliance with Code applicable to
them during the year ended 31" March, 2021. The annual report of the Company contains a certificate by the

Managing Director terms of SEBI Listing Regulations on the compliance declarations received from Independent
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Senior Management.

10. Means of Communication:
The Company communicates with its shareholders on an annual basis through the Annual Report. The quarterly,
half-yearly, nine monthly and yearly results are published in newspaper -Free Press Journal in English language & in
Navshaktiin Marathi,
No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts.
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of Directors Report.

As required, information relating to quarterly financial results, shareholding pattern etc. were provided to BSE Ltd
and isavailable on website wwwindoboras.com & www.bseindia.com

11. General Information for Shareholder:
a. Annual General Meeting
The Company is conducting meeting through VC/0AVM pursuant to the MCA cireular dated May 5, 2020 and as such there is no
requirement to have avenue for the AGM, For details please refer notice of this AGM.

b. Record Date /Book Closure date : 20" August, 2021 to 28" August, 2021
(both days inclusive)

c. Dividend payment Date 3 Dividend, if declared, shall be paid/credited on or after 1" September,
2021
d. Listing onStock Exchanges ; BSE Lud, (BSE) Mumbai,

(The Kolkatta Stock Exchange Ltd. - Delisting
confirmation from The Kolkatta Stock Exchange is still awaited)

e. Stock Code : 524342 -B5E Limited,

— & ——
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. Depositories i NSDL and CDSL
g. ISINNo. : INEBD3ID01013
h. ListingFeesfor2021-22 : Paid for the BSE Ltd
i. Custodial Feesto Depositories ! Annual Custody fees for the financial vear 2021-22
paid to NSDL & CDSL,
j. Corporate ldentity Number : LZ4100MH1980PLCO23177
k. Monthly high / low price at The Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (Financial Year 2020-21):

L

Total No. of
High Low Equi

Month [Hlil (Rs) Sl?arg
Traded

April -2020 218.00 155.00 151732
May-2020 201.75 180.00 H0060
June-2020 269.75 185.30 122352
July-2020 352.90 235.00 170222
Aupust=2020 454,50 309,45 168932
September-2020 407.90 33000 80859
October-2020 360.00 311.00 58406
November-2020 384.00 | 295.20 68433
December-2020 501.00 360.00 196026
January-2021 519.00 | 431.00 90100
February-2021 739.00 444.00 250252
March-2021 686.00 577.05 65830

Address for Correspondence

Registrarand Transfer (R & T) Agents:

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, C-101, 247 Park, L B 5 Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai - 400 083, Ph. +91-22- 4918 6270, Fax
+912249186060, E-mail: rnthelpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Compliance Officer:

Pravin Chavan, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid

302, Link Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400 054

Tel-+9122 26489142, Fax-+91 22 26489143

E-mail: complianceofficer@indoborax.com
Share Transfer System:

Presently, fortnightly cycle is followed for processing physical transfer requests and Share transfers. The directors or
designated officers are authorized severally to approve transfers, which are noted at subsequent Board Meeting. The
company obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice, half-yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer
formalities as required under listing regulation and file a copy of the said certificate with Stock Exchange.

—— —_—
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n. Dematerialization ofShares:
Ason31-Mar-2021, 30,70,800 equity shares representing 95.69 % of the Company's paid-up equity share capital is held

in electronic farm.

During the year under review, the Company's equity shares have been actively traded on BSE Limited.

0. DistributionofShareholdingason31-Mar-2021: Shareholding Patternason 31-Mar-2021
No. of Sr. | Category of No.of | “eto
Number of equity | Share No. Of No. Holders Sl:la.l"es Total
shares held holders| % Shares| 9% Shares
g, | nstisn 17,78342 | 55.42
1| - [500 5470 9449 500402 15.59 Promoters
501 | - |1000 160 2.76| 122030| 380 2 Nﬂ‘ﬂ_'
1001 | - (2000 69| 1.19| 104128| 3.25 E*Eséd“tsfp”ﬂ! 81,168 |  2.53
2001 | - 3000 27 0.47 69052 | 215 Dthesr
3001 | - 4000 17 0.29 61214 191 3 Corporate 51392 1.60
4001 | - |5000 9 0.16 43075 1.34 Bodies
2p01) - 008y 25| 043] 161967] 505| | 4 | indianPublic | 10,63,210 | 33.13
10001 | & |Above 12 0.21| 2147132 | 6691 Clearing
5 5,099 016
Total 5,789 [100.00 32,09,000 100.00 Members
In Physical Form 1,38,200| 431 & | IEPF Account 2,29,789 7.16 |
In Electronic Form 30,70,800| 95.69 Total 32,09,000 | 100.00

p. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs /Warrants or any Convertible instruments:
The Company has notissued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

g. LocationofPlantFacilities:
Plantlocations :PlotNo.43to 46,474, 48, 48A, Industrial Estate, Sectorl,
Pithampur-454 775, [M.E)

r. Unclaimed Dividend Amounts:
Pursuant to Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority [Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 {"IEPF Rules"), dividends, if not claimed for a
consecutive period of 7 years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be

transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund ["TEPF”).

Further; all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed [or seven consecutive years or maore from
the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. The said requirement does
notapply to shares inrespect of which there is aspecificorder of Court, Tribunal or statutory authority, restraining any

transfer of shares.

In the interest of shareheolders, the Company send notices to the shareholders to claim their dividend in order to avoid
transfer of dividend /shares to IEPF Authority. Notices in this regard also published in the newspapers and the details
of unclaimed dividend and shareholders whose shares are liable to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, are uploaded

on the Company's website,

— & ——
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In light of aforesaid provisions, the company has during the year under review, transferred to IEPF the unclaimed
dividends, outstanding for seven consecutive years, Further, shares of the Company in respect of which dividend has
not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more, have also been transferred to the demat account of IEPF
Authority.

The details of unclaimed dividend and shares transferred to IEPF during the year 2020-21 are as follows:

Financial Amount of unclaimed dividend transferred Mumber of shares
Year (Rs. In Lakhs) transferred
2012-13 7.16 5596

The members who have a claim on above dividends and shares may claim the same from [EPF Authority by submitting
an online application in the prescribed Form No. I[EPF-5 available on the website of www.iepfgovin and sending a
physical copy of the same, duly signed to the Company, along with requisite documents enumerated in the Form No.
IEPF-5. No claims shall lie against the Company in respect of the dividend/shares so transferred. The
Members/claimants can file only one consolidated claimin a financial year as per the [EPF Rules.

Information in respect of various outstanding dividends and the date by which they can be claimed by the shareholder
from the Company are as follows :

Financial Year Amount outstanding | Due for transfer to
as on 31.03.2021 [Rs. | IEPF on
in Lakhs)
2013-2014 5.57 31/10/2021
2014-2015 4,61 25/09/2022
2015-2016 4.68 16/09/2023
2016-2017 4,59 22/09/2024
2017-2018 1.65 27/09/2025
2018-2019 1.31 18/10/2026
2019-2020 1.84 29/10/2027

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants pertaining to the aforesaid years may approach the
company/its registrar, for obtaining payments thereof at least 20 days before they are due for transfer to the said
fund.

s. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: Thereareno sharesinany
demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account,
By Order ofthe Board of Directors

Mumbai Sajal Jain
June 14,2021 Managing Director

&
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34{3) and Schedule V Para C clause [10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Tao,
The Members of
Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

302, Link Rose, Linking Road,
Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400054

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Indo Borax &
Chemicals Limited having CIN :-L24100MH1980PLC023177 and having registered office at 302, Link Rose, Linking Road,
Santacruz [West), Mumbai 400054 [hereinalter referred to as ‘the Company'), produced before me by the Company for Lhe
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according Lo the veriflicalions (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN]) status at the portal www.mcagovin) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its
officers, |, hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on
31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disgualified from being appointed or conlinuing as Direclors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai or any such other Statutory Authority.

- Name of Director DIN Dt ok appoimtment i
No. Company

1 Arun Sunderlal Sureka 00148145 27/04/1987

2 Sajal Sushilkumar Jain 00314855 26/05,/2008

3 Narendra Nemi Chandra Mittal 00314916 18,/08,/1998

4 Govind Ramlal Parmar 03556411 30/05/2011

5 Sreelekha Sajal Jain 08057896 14/02 /2018

Ensuring the eligibility of for the continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company norof the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Mumbai Name: Prasad Giridhar Parab
Date: 14/06/2021 Membership No: A25324
UDIN: AD25324C000468437

CP No.: 10235
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The Board of Directors

Indo Borax & Chemicals Lid.,
302, Link Rose, Linking Road,
Santacruz [West)

Mumbai - 400 054

MD /CFO CERTIFICATION
We hereby certify that:
a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March,2021 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

1] These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

1)  Thesestatements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. Mo transaction are entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of
conduct,

¢.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls over financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and
the Audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d.  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
] Significant changes, if any in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

I} Significant changes, if any in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

1) thereare noinstances of significant fraud of which we have become aware,
Sajal [ain
[Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer)
Mumbai, june 14, 2021

To,
The Board of Directors
[ndo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Declaration pursuant to schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Itis hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in SEBI Listing Regulations with the stock exchange, all the Board members and the
Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of conduct of the Company for the financial year
ended 317 March, 2021.
Sajal Jain
Managing Director
Mumbal, dated June 14,2021

Board Confirmation

Based on the assessment carried oot by the Board of Directors of the Company (Board) and the declarations of independence submitted
by the Independent Directors, this is to confivm that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified
inthese regulations andare independentolthe Management.
Sajal Jain
Managing Director
Mumbai, dated June 14, 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To the Members of
[ndo Borax & Chemicals Lid.

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited. ('the
Company'] for the vear ended on March 31, 2021 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub- regulation (2) of
Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SERI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance

with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by
the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations, except non-fulfilment of the vacancy created on sad

demise of Late Mr. Sushil Kumar Jain, Managing Director by 31" March, 2021,

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Pulindra Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.115187W)

Pulindra Patel
Proprietor
Membership No. 048991

UDIN No.: 21048991 AAAA)JZ4396
Place: Mumbai
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Independent Anditor's Report
To the Members of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of INDD BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED {"the Company"} which comprises the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including Other Comprehensive Income], statement of changes in

Equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its total comprehensive income
(comprising of prefitand other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {5As) specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and we have fulfilled our otherethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Auditmatter:

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information :

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Report on Corporate Governance,
Business Responsibility Report and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

# Dur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

» In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of ouraudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

# |If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements :

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, (including Other Comprehensive [ncome), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified in the companies [ Indian Accounting
Standard) rules 2015 [ as amended ) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicaticn of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
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maintenance of adequate internal Anancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level ofassurance, butis nota guarantee that an awdit conducted inaccordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As partof an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Wealso:

(i} Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting lrom [raud s higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(ii}) Obtain an understanding ofinternal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstaneces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls

(iii] Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management.

{iv)  Conclude onthe appropriateness of managemenl's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ar conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. [fwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Stand alone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Dur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a £0ing concern.

) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Standalone consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit worlcand in evaluating the results of our work; and
(1) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relalionships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, In accordance with the
requirements of 54 701, the auditor describes these matters in the auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
abour the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, the auditor determines that a matter should not he communicated in the
auditor's report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such commumnication.

ReportonOther Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ["the Order™), Issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure "A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, Lo the extentapplicable.

As required by Section 143 [3] ofthe Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary

for the purposes of our audit,

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books,

c The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including ether comprehensive income) and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies [ Accounts) Rules, 2014,

E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31st March, 2021 [rom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2} of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate Reportin "Annexure A",

B- With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of
the Act, asamended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company toitsdirectors during the vearis in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinionand to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

— —
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i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 317 March, 2021 on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial positioninits standalone financial statements - refer Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements.

il) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivate contracts asat 31" March, 202 1.

iii]  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection fund
by the company during the yearended 31" March, 2021.
For Pulindra Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 115187W
Pulindra Patel
Place : Mumbai Proprietor
Date; 14" June, 2021 Membership No.: 148991
UDIN Now: 21048991 AAAA1GE24]

Annexure (A] to the independent Auditor's Report
[Referred toin paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date

to the members of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2021]

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets,

{b) All fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given tous, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the immovable properties owned by the company are held in the name of
the company: In respect of immovable property taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in standalone financial statements,

the lease agreement is in the name of the Company.

2. The Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, frequency of verification of

inventory is reasonable. There are no material discrepancies noticed by the management.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans secured or unsecured to
companies, firms Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii] (a], (b.) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence notcommented upon.

4. As per the information and explanations provided to us, there is no loans, investments, guarantees and securities given by the
company to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not appiy. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 in respect of grant ofloans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

5. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public within the provisions of Section 73 o 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.

6.  We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies [Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Governmentunder sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are ofthe
opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been so made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with aview to determine whether they areaccurate or complete.

— —
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10,

11.

12,

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination of the boolts of account, the
Company has been regular In depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, lnvestor Education and Protection
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Value Added Tax Customs Duty, Excise Duly, and other
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

b] According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, [ncome tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty
and other undisputed statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they
hecame payable.

According to the records of the Company, disputed commercial claim not deposited on account of dispute are as follows :

Mame of Statute /| Amountin Rs.In Lacs Period to which the | Forum where dispute
Description amount relates is pending

Commercial Claim 9.0z 1992-93 Bombay High Court

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion thatthe
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company dees not have any borrowings by way
debentures,

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer including debt instruments during the year and did not have any
term loans outstanding during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that
no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of pur audit.

As per the information and explanations given to us the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions ofsection 197 read with schedule V ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

As per the information and explanations given to us the company is not a Nidhi Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us the company all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential allotiment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the yvear review

As per the information and explanations given Lo us, the company has not entered Into any non- cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with him.

Ag per the information and explanations given te us, the company is not required to get it registered under section 45-14 of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Pulindra Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 115187

Pulindra Patel

Place: Mumbai Froprietor
Date : 14" june, 2021 Membership No.; 048991

UDIN No. : 21048991 AAAAIG4241
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ANNEXURE'R'TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1(F) OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDO BORAX &
CHEMICALS LIMITED

Reporton the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) ofSub-section 3 ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
In conjunction with ourauditofthe standalone financial statements of Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited (the "Company”)asatand for the

yvear ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting of the Company as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficientconduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on
ouraudit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
[the "Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act to the extentapplicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the [CAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was estab lished and malntained and
ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over

financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controel based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of marerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror,
We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse audit opinion on the

Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles, A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
[1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of

the assets ofthe company;
(2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

onlyinaccordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
[3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the

company'sassets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinton, the Company has in all materlal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Mote on Auditof Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Pulindra Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 115187

Pulindra Patel
Flace : Mumbai Froprietor
Date : 14" June, 2021 Membership No.: 048991

UDIN No. : 21048991AAAAIGE241
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Standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2021

[Amaunts are in lakhs unless stated otherwize]

B As at March 31,  As at March 31,
Particulars Note 2021 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 L406.62 1,486.13
Capital work-in-progress 1 ma.sz 1052
Investment in Properties 2 745731 306557
Investments in Subsidiary 3 1040493 101.93
Financial Assets

i, Investments 3(a) 21.57 14,22
il. Loans 4 1,897,115 2,151.98
iii. Other Financlal Assets 5 HhAh 3763
Total non-current assets 11,976.55 690598
Current asseis
Inventories & LO88.69 1.035.3%
Financial assets
L Investments 7 301036 1.784.71
ii. Trade recervables B B7384 203.50
iii. Cash and cash equivalents g 166.79 396106
iv, Bank balances ather than (iii] above 10 F0.949 amll
v, Loans 11 24.05 5.98
Other current assets 12 HER.10 24220
Tolal current assets 7.02Z.82 7.868.95
Total assets 1899937 1483493
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 3zZ090 320.90
Other equity 14 1697287 1347788
Total equity 17.293.77 13,798.78
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 15 4330 T3.80
Deferred Tax Liabilives 1 98.81 L2089
Total non-current liahilities 147.11 194.69
Current liabilities
Financial liahilities
L, Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - 5.07F
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 53258 27710
ii. Dther financial liabilities 18 761.63 41852
Employes Benelit Ohligation 19 154,532 13927
Income Tax Liakllities Net 129.96 1.50
Total liabilities 1,558.49 B41.4G
Total equity and liabilities 18,999.37 14,834.93

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per attached report of even date.

For Pulindra Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 115187W

Pulindra Patel
Proprietor
Membership No, 048991

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 14th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board Directors

Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Managing Director & CFO Director
DIN-00314855 DIN-00148145
Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Director Director
DIN-0805TH96 DIN-O0314916
Govind Parmar Pravin Chavan
Director

DIN-03556411

Company Secretary
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Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

[Amaunts are in lakhs unless stated otherwize]
Asat March 31,  As at March 31,

i N
Particulars ote 2021 2020
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 20 14,415.32 11,525.48
Other income 21 410,08 548,09
Total income 14,825.40 12,073.57
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumted 22 6, 15955 6, 77064
Furchase of traded goods 23 - 10,40
[Increase)/decrease in inventaries of finished goods, work-in-
progress and traded goods 24 28.30 [(47.23)
Employee benefit expenses 22 101271 737.21
Finance Cost 26 352 014
Depreciation and amortisation expenses i 107.46 12879
Other expenses 7 281235 2,190.35
Total expenses 10,123.89 9,790.30
Profit before exceptional items and tax 4,701.51 2,283.27
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 4,701.51 2,283.27
Income tax expense
- Current tax 28 123692 536,80
- Deferred tax 28 (920} (7.52)
Total tax expense/(credit) 1,227.72 529.28
Profit from continuing operations 3473.79 1,753.99
Profit for the year 3.473.79 1,753.99
Standalone statement of other comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2021
ftems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax relating to above
aj ltems That Will Mot Be Reclassified To Prafit Or Loss 7250 50,55
B} Income Tax Relating To ttems That Will Not Be Reclassified To Prafit Or Loss 12.88 617
B5.38 56.72Z
OCI for the year a5.38 56.72
Total comprehensive income for the year 3.559.17 1.810.71
Earnings per share 29
Basic 108.25 S4.66
Diluted 108.25 S54.66
The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per attached report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board Directors
For Pulindra Patel & Co., Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
Chartered Accountants . -
; ; Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Firm Regiseration No. 1151870 Managing Director & CFO Director
; DIN-00314855 DIN-00148145
?ulmflra Patel Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No, 048991 DIN-0B05789%4 DIN-O0314916
Govind Parmar Pravin Chavan

Place : Mumbai ;
Director el
Date : 14th June, 2021 DIN-03556411 Company Secretary
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Pairtiiilais As at March As at March As at March
31,2021 31,2021 31, 2020
A Cash flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 4.701.51 228327
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization for the vear 10746 128.79
[Frofit)/Loss on sale of Investment (Net) (1596} [91.80)
Met unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - [59.91)
Met (profit] floss on disposal of property, plant and equipment [.30) "
Dividend received (51.13] (133.39)
Interest Income [153.15) [B6.97)
Finance cost 3.52 4
{109.56) (243.14)
Operating profit hefore working capital changes 4,291.95 2,0:40.13
Adjustments for:
Decrease/Increase in lnventories [953.30] 130,73
Decrease/ (Increase] In non-current Anancial assets 251.57 (1.292.000
Decrease/[increase] in current financial assets (52.94) (2.25)
Decrease f(increase] in other current assets (B45.90] 83346
Increase in trade receivables (7034 19256
Increase in trade payables 250.41 GlaG
Increase in current financial liabilities 34311 [135.66)
Increase in non-current financial liabilities (25.50) (1.95)
Increase in ather provisions {1020 13.25
{41 3.08]) [(171.20)
Cash generated from operating activities 3,678.86 1,868.93
Income Tax Paid (net) [1,112.04) -
{1,112.04) (544 41
MNet cash generated from operating activities 2566082 1,324.53
B Cash flow from investing activities:
Furchase of property, plant and equipment [28.11) [(30.68)
Proceeds from sale of assets/Government Subsidy 047 345.62
Investment in Property [(4.391.74) -
Purchase of Investments [4.659.57) [14.563.74)
Proceeds from redemption of investments, Z2,581.28 1665141
Interest receivied 153.15 B6.9Y
Dividend received 51.13 133.39
Net cash used in investing activities (6,293.39) 262297
C Cash flow from financing activities:
Interest paid (3.52) [0.14)
Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) (64.18) (48.14)
MNet cash generated from financing activities (67.70) (48,28)
: " (3,794.27) 3,899.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the vear 3.0961.06 61.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yvear 166.79 3,961.06

As per attached report of even date,

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per attached report of even date.

For Pulindra Patel & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 115187W

Pulindra Patel
Proprietor
Membership No, 048991

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 14th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board Directors

Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Managing Director & CFO Director
DIN-00314855 DIN-00148145
Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Director Director
DIN-0805TH96 DIN-00314916
Govind Parmar Pravin Chavan
Director

DIN-03556411

Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note No. of Shares Amount
Izsued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Balance as at 31 March 2020 13 3209000 320,90
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year = -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 13 3209000 320090
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserve & Surplus
Capital Share Retat
Redemption Forfeiture ";i';:ﬁl E‘:I:::.?: ; Total
Reserve Account

Balance as at 31 March Z019 27.20 139 130911 1037761 11,71531
Profit for the year . . - 1,753.09 1,753.99
Transfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Account Z z 175.00 Z 175.00
Transfer to General Reserve g = - (175.00) (175.00)
Other comprehensive Income . . - 50.54 G054
Income Tax Relating To Items That Will Mot Be Reclassified Ta Profit Or Loss - - - 6,18 6.18
Total comprehensive income 2720 1.39 1,484.11 12,013.32 13,526.02
Dividends distributed to equity shareholders - - - (48.14) (48.14)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 27.20 1.39 148411 1196518 13.477.688
Profit for the year ; z a 3,473.79 2.473.79
Transfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Account z & 350.00 i 35000
Transfer to General Reserve a 3 & (350.00) (350.00)
Other comprehensive income Z . i 23 B0 T ED
Income Tax Relating To Items That Will Mot Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss = E - 1208 1208
Total comprehensive income 27.20 1.39 182411 15,174.35 17,037.05
Dividends distributed to equity shareholdors - - . (64.18) (64.18)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 27.20 1.39 183411 1511017 1697287

a} Capital Redemption Reserve

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of eguity shares from its retained earnings, The amount in Capital Redemption

Reserve ks equal tonominal amount of the equity shares bought back.
b} Share Forfeiture Account

Amount originally received on 19000 equity shares, inclusive of share premium on forfeiture of shares transferred to Share Forfeiture Account.

¢} General Reserves

The Company created general reserve In earller yvears pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act whereln certain percentage of profits were required
to be transferred to general reserve before declaring dividends. As per the Companies Act 2013, the requirement to transfer profits to general reserve s not

mandatory, General feserve [sa free reserve avallable tothe Company.

As per attached report of even date,

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per attached report of even date,

For Pulindra Patel & Co,,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 115187W

Pulindra Patel
Proprietor
Membership No, 048991

Place : Mumbai
Date ; 14th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board Directors
Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Sajal Jain

Managing Director & CFO
DIN-00314855
Sreelekha Jain

Director

DIN-08057896

Govind Parmar
Director

DIN-03556411

Arun Sureka
Director
DIN-00148145

N K Mittal
Director
DIN-Q0314916
Pravin Chavan
Company Secretary
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Corporate Information

Inda Borax & Chemicals Limited [the Company] is a public limited company incorparated and domiciled in India. The registered office is 2t 302, Link
Rose, Linking Road, Santacrus (West), Mumbai- 400054, The Company isengaged inmanufacturing of Boron products and Lithium.

Significant accounting policies
a) Generalinformationand Compliance with Ind A5 :
These financial statements have been prepared inaccerdance with the Indian Accounting Standards [ hereinafter referred to as the "Ind AS"} as notified by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133.of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Bules, 2016,

The financial statements have been prepared on acerual and going concern basis. The accounting policles are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements, including the preparation of the opening [nd AS Balance Sheetas at 1st April, 2016 being the "date of transition to
Ind A% All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as setoutin
the Division || of Schedule 1] to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between acguisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and Habilitles.

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended 31st March, 2021 were approved for issue in accordance with the resalution of the Board of
Directorson T4th june, 20021,

b} Currentversus noncurrent classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the kalance sheat based on current/ non-current classification. An assetis classified as currentwhen it is:
L Expected ta be reallsed or Intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cyele,
ii.  Held primarily forthe purpose of trading,
iil,  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  Cashorcashequivalentunless restricted from being exchanged or used o settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is classified as current when:
R Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
i Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading
iii.  Itisduetobesettled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
v, Thereis nounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Theaperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Deferred tax assetsand
liabilities are classified as non-current assetsand liabilities,

¢}  Property, Plantand Equipment;
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met
and directlyattributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use:
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrving amount or recognised as @ separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic henefits associated with the itemowill Aow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss
asincurred.
Subsequent measurement {depreciation and useful lives) :
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method on assets located in Factory premises. The company has followed
written-down value method of providing depreciation with respect to assets tocated at Head Office. The Deprectiation bs computed on the basis of useful
lives {assetout below]) prescribed in Schedule [ the Act;

Theamortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively, it

appraopriate,

Description of Asset Eﬁ:’;‘:;‘fﬂiﬁ;‘"
Ofice Building 60
Factory Building 30
Flant and equipment 20
Office equipment
Computers
Electric installation 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles ]

Leaschold improvements have been amortised over the estimated useful life of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is lower, The residual values,
useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at éach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

— & ——
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De-recognition

An item of property, plantand equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognized upon dispozal orwhen no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) bs included in the income statemoent when the assetis derecognised.

Transilion Lo Ind AS
On transition to lnd A%, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment recognised as at Lst April,
2016 measured as per the provizsions of previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed costof property, plant and cquipment.

d} Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any Indication based on Internal fexternal factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 1f such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the
reduction ks treated as an impatrment loss and s recognised in the statement of profitand loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that
an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount
exceedsits carrying amount.,
The impalrrment losses and reversals are recognised Lo statement of profitand loss,

¢} Investmentsin Subsidiary:
Inwestments in subsidiary [ carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, (Fany. Where an indication of impalrment exists, the carrylng amount of
the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carryving amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

f) Financial instruments :
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financlal assets and financial labilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the fnancial instrument and
are measured initially at fairvalue adjusted for transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement:

il Financial instruments at amortised cost—the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost ifboth the following conditions are met :

The asset iz held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash fAows, and Contractual terms of the asset give
rlse onspecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intevest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After Initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest rate (ELR] method, All the debt
instruments of the company are measured atamortised cost.
Trade Receivablesand Loans :

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value, Subsequently, these assetsare held at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate ( EIR ) method
netafany expected creditlosses, The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated fuoture cash income through the expected life of financial instrument,

Mutual Funds, Equity investment, bonds and other financial instruments :
Mutual Funds, Eguity investment, bonds and other financial instruments o the scope of lnd As 109 are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income [ FVTOCE,

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liahilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial liahilities is also
adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. These liahilities include
borrowings.
De-recognition of financial liahilities
A financial liahility is de-recognised when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ar expires, When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lizbility are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de- recognition of the ariginal liahility and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statementof proficand loss.

gl  Impairmentoffinancial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of im pairment loss for financial
assets.
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects toreceive. When estimating the cash lows, the Company isrequlred to consider

L. All contractual terms ofthe financial assets (Including prepavment and extension] over the expoected life of the assets,

Ik Cashflows froin the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral w the contractual Lerms.

Trade receivables

The Company applies approach permitted by [nd AS 109, financial instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from indtial
recognition of receivahles.

Otherfinancial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition and i credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is provided.

—_— & —
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h} Inventories
Raw Matertal: Lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined on fiest in first out ['FIFOT) basis.

Work in progress, are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost of work in progress and manufactured Rnished goods comprises direct
material, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventaries to their present location and condition,

Finished goods: Lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost is determined on FIFD basis, Includes direct materlal and labour exponses and appropriate
proportion of manufacturing overheads based an the normal capacity for manufactured goods.

Met realisable value s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs ofcompletion and estimated costs of necessary to
make the sale.

i)  ForeignCurrency Translation
Initial recognition

The Company’s linancial statements are presented in INK, which is also the Company's funclional currency. Transactions in forelgn currencies are
recorded oninitial recognition inthe functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction,
Measurement at the balance sheet date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. Mon-monetary items which are
carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value iz determined.
Treatmentof exchange difference
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company's monetary items at the
closing rate are recognised as income or expensesinthe period inwhich they arise,

i} Incometaxes:
Tax expense recognised in statement of profitand loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognlsed in Other Comprehensive lncome
[*OC] or directly in equity
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income-tax Act, Current income-
tax relating to itemns recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised owtside statement of profit and loss (either in OC1 or in equity). The
company has provided the current tax as per the announcement by the government of India on 20th September;, 2019, vide The Taxation Laws
{amendment} Ordinance 2014, inserted a new section 1 15BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 which provides an option to the company for paying income
taxatreduced rate as perthe provisions/conditions in the said sections.

Deferred income-tax is caloulated using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits or deductible temporary difference will
he utilised against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-
taxable income and expensges and specific limits on the age of any unused tax loss or credit. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed ab éach
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profics will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,
Deferred tax assets and lHabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
hased on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside
statement of profitand loss 1s recognised outside statement of profitand loss [elther in OCT or in equity].

k) Cashandcash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short- term highly liguid investments {original
maturity less than 3 months) thatare readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject toan insignificant risk of change in value.

I}  Post-employment, long term and short term em ployvee benefits
i} ShortTerm Employee Benefits:
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term emplovee benefits. These benefits
include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia.
ii) Defined contribution plans
Emploves benefits In the form of contribution 1o Provident Fund managed by Government authorities. Employvees State Insurance Corporation and
Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due,
i) Delined benelitplans
Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity benefit is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation,
iv] Gratuity
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined henefit retirement plan covering eligible employees, The plan provides for payment to vested
employess at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of given years of service. The company makes contribution to empleyees group gratuity fund
established by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Actwarial gains and losses arlsing from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Profit
and Loss accountin the period in which they arise.

m) (perating expenses
Operating expenses are recognised in profit orloss upon utifisation of the service or as incorred.

i} Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisitions, construction or production of a gualifying asset arve capitalised during the period of time that is

necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use orsale, Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incarred and
reported in finance costs

—_— & —
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o)  Fairvalue measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fairvaive at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer z liability in an orderdy transaction bebween market participants at the

measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
efther:

i} Inthe principal market for the assetor liability, or

i} Intheabsence ofa principal market, Inthe most advantageous market for the assetorliability
The principal or the most advantageous market musthe accessihle by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assetor liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic bestinterest.

Pl Frovisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised only when there isa present cbligation, as a result of past events, and when areliable estimate of the amount of ohligation can be
made at the reporting date, These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material,
Contingent liability is disclozed for:
i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed omly by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
[l Present obligations arising from past events wherd it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation or a reliahle
estimate of the amount of the ohligation cannot be made.
Contingent assetsare not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefitis probable, related assetis disclosed

q) Earningspershare
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to eguity shareholders (after deducting attributable
taxes| by the weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average numberafequity shares outstanding during
the period isadjusted for events including a bonus issue,
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the welghted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

r) Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimationuncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amaounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabllitles, and the related disclosures
Significantmanagement judgements and estimate
The following are significant management judgements and estimates in applving the accounting policies of the Company that have the maost significant
effect on the financial statements
Recognition of deferred tax assets = The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the future
taxableincome against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised
Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several
externaland internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount ofthe assets
Recoverability of advances/recelvables - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the management
assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, medical costtrénds, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases, Variation in these assumplions may significantly impact
the DBO amount and theannual defined benefit expenses.
Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes
are not available). This Ilnvelves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
Management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length
transaction atthe reporting date
Useful lives of depreciable famortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable famortizable assets at each reporting
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainttes in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence.

5]  Revenue recognition Sales of goods
The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and related services.
The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entlty expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-
stepap pruach to revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of products  to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products,
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customoer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
Step 3: Determine the ransaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Hecognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance ohligation
Under Ind A5 115, an entity recognises revenue when [oras] a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e, when 'control’ of the goods or services underiving
the particular performance obligation Is transferred to the customer. The Company has completed [ts evaluation of the possible Impact of lnd AS 115 and

—_— —
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has adopted the standard from Lst April, 2018,
Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method,
Dividend
Dividends are recopnised at the tme the right to receive the payment is established,

) Segmentinformation
The managing committee is considered to be the ‘Chlef Operating Declsion Maker® (CODM) as defined in IND AS 108, The Operating Segmentis the levelat
which discrete financial information is available. The CODM allocates resources and assess performance at this level. The Company has one operating
segment Le. Chemical Manufacturing which includes Boron Products and Lithium Hydroxide.
Accounting for Lease : Company as a lessee :The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, cxcept for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets, The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying assets,
Asperind AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease iabilities in the statement of profitand |oss,
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased {tem are classified as operating leases,
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss ona straight-line basis over the lease term unless the payments
are structured to increase inline with expected general inflation te compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.
Company asalessor:
Leases n which the Company dees not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset ave classifled as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent
rentsare recognised as revenue in the period inwhich they are earned

u}  GovernmentGrants
Government grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of the concerned fixed assets, Capital
Subsidies under MP MSME Protsahan Scheme, 2001 7 is recognised to the extent the claims are accepted and settled,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended

31st March, 2021

Note 1 - Property, plant and equipment

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise]

Furniture fixture

Plant and

Office

Leased

Capital work

Particulars Buildings anc! office- machinery equipments Vehicles oo Total -in-progress
equipments

frross Mlock

As at April 01, 2019 1,112.96 135.89 1.676.24 73.37 26901 10,06 327753 112,14

Additions . 10.07 8.24 1.56 14.44 . 34.30 -

Deduction - - J430d - - 34562 3.6

As at March 31, 2020 111296 145.96 1,338.87 74.52 283,44 1006 296621 108,52

Additions 0.17 B8.27 5.77 13940 - 28.11 -

Lreduction - - - 4.01 - +.01 -

As at March 31, 2021 1.112.96 146.13 1,347.14 B0.69 293.33 1006  2,990.31 108,52

Particul Buildi Furnit:rl;ﬁﬁxt_ure Plant and Office Leased Capital work
articutars widings an"“ lpznet:ts machinery equipments Vehicles o na el -in-progress

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2019 296.31 98.40 [alati Hals 33.36 23456 3 1.351.2% =

[repreciation charge during the year 40.57 11.48 5741 7.69 11.65 . 128.79 -

Deduction - - - - -

As at March 31, 2020 336.88 10988 726.07 61.04 24620 - 1,480.08 -

Depreciation charge during the year 39.04 .00 43.90 6.02 9.49 - 10746 -

Ceduction = - g 3.54 : 3.84 -

As at March 31, 2021 375.92 118.88 T69.97 6706 251.85 - 1,583.69 .

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 737.04 27.24 57717 13.63 41.48 10.06 1.406.62 108.52

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 776.08 36.08 612.80 13.88 37.24 10.06 148613 108.52
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 2 - Investment property

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Gross block
Opening gross carrying amount 3,065.57 3,065.57
Additions 4,391.74 -
Closing gross carrying amount 7.457.31 3,065.57
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 7.457.31 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 - 3,065.57
(1} Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss for investment properties

As at March 31, As at March 31,
raresan 2021 2020
Rental income 95.23 134 .88
Direct operating expenses for property that
generated rental income (11.47) {10.80)
Direct operating expenses for property that did not
generate rental income (20.27) (25.23)
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 63.49 98.85
Depreciation - -
Profit from investment properties 63.49 O8.85

(1i) Leasing arrangements

Minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties are as follows:

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Purtseuliny 2021 2020
Within 1 year 8400 9200
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 105.00 182,00
Later than 5 years - -
Total 189.00 274.00

{iii}  Fafrvalue ofinvestment property as on 315t March, 2021 is R 766874 (2525.00). The company abtains independent valuations for its investment in

properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the

company onsider information from avariety of sourcesincluding:

¥ Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect

those differences,

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,

* Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of market

evidence.

The fair values of investment in commercial properties have been determined by Independent Valuer H. Mehta & Associates. The main inputs used
are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and industry data. All

resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.
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Note 3 - Non-current investments {Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
MNo. OFf No. O
Particulars Share /Bond AN SRR, Share /Bond ArAMarciat,;
: 2021 v Z0Z0
Unit Unit

a) Investments in subsidiaries ;

Unguoted

In Equity Instruments at cost, fully paid-up

Indeborax lnfrastruciure Private Limited 1 LOHHY 1,040,493 TUHCHHY 101.9%
Total 104093 101,93

Note 3(a) - NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Uther Equity Instruments ;

Unguoted, fully paid up

Reliance Media Works Ltd L - Q75

Investment in Equity Instruments

Quoted, fully paid up

At Fair value through OCI

Central Bank of lndia Lud 3200 .52 3200 0,39

[aiprakaszh Assockates Limited 4500 0.31 AL00 0.05

lindal Stee] & Power Limited 300 1.03 300 025

Kamanwala Industries Limited 57395 2.63 57395 251

L & T Limited 900 12,77 900 726

Mphasiz Limited 300 - 300 -

Matlonal Thermal Power Limited 3600 383 Fa00 3.03

MNagarjuna Constructions Company Limited - - 1500 0n.28

Punj Lloyd Limited 1460 0.0z 4000 0.02

Reliance Comminucation Limited 2000 0.03 2004 001

Unity Projects Limited 2000 .02 2000 0.00

Investement in Debentures - fully paid up

Unguoted,

At Fair value through OCI

NTPC Ltd, Non Convertible Debentures 3000 0.41 I 0.39
Total 21.57 14.22

Apgregate amount of quoted investments 2157 14,22

Appregate market value of listed and quoted investments 21,57 1422

Agpregate amount ol unguoted investmonts 1,040,093 10193

Aggregate amount of impairment (n value of Investments 0.03 0.03

Note 4 - Long term loans and advances

Asat March 31, Asat March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Capital advances

Loans- Intercorporate Deposits

Inter Corporate Deposits 1,488.93 1,735.11

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Linsecured, considered good 296.44 330.31

Unsecured, considered doubtful - -
296.44 330.21

Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good

Advance income-tax(net of provision for taxation) 41.08 37.51

Loans to employees 59.93 49.05

Loans - Credit Impaired - -

Others (%) 10.77 -
111.78 B6.56

Total 1,897.15 2,151.98

(¥} The Company recongnised ROU asserts for the following assets categories:

'
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[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Right to use category Amount Amount
Lease hold land & Building 10.77 -

Operating lease commibtments as of 1st April, 2020 - -
Exemption of commitments for short-term leases - -

Exemption of commitments for leases of low value assets

Undiscounted future lease payments from operating leases

10.92 -
Effect of discounting 0.19 -
Lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 10.73 -

Note 5 - Other Non Current Financial Assets

As at March 31, AsatMarch 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 4445 37.63
Total 44.45 37.63

Note 6 - Inventories

As at March 31, AsatMarch 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Raw materials (Refer note 22) 1,813.99 86688

Stock in Process 11.85 17.78

Finished goods 63.00 85.37

Stock of Consumable Stores & Spare parts (at cost) 599,85 65.30

Total 1,988.69 1,035.39

Note 7 - Current investments

Particulars Shgzé,?nfuv "‘:“ March snﬁ:‘ém p | AsatMarch31,
Uu.it 31,2021 Uﬂil 2020

Investment in Mutual Fund - fully paid up

Quoted

At Fair value through OCI

581 Magnum Low Duration Fund Growth TLO77AH2 195490 | 60530LE35 1,575.51

SBI1 Magnum Ultra Short Term Fund Growth 22,562.998 1058546 = -

1CIC] Prudential Liguid Fund-Direct Plan Dividend = - 208,975,493 209,20

Total 3,010.36 1,784.71

Agpropate amount of quoted investmenks 3,010.36 1,784.71

Aggregate market value of listed and quoted Investments 3.010.36 1,784.71

Ageregate amount of unguoted investments £ =

Aggregate Provision for Impairment in the Value of Investments % =



(%) INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED ()

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

MNote 8 - Trade receivables [Amaunts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
P ey Pt As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
date they are due for payment
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired - -

Unsecured, considered good 0.20 213
Doubrtiul - -
0.20 213
Less : Provision for doubtful reveivables - -
0.20 213
Other receivables A473.64 B01.37
Unsecured, considered good - -
Total 873.84 803.50
MNote 9 - Cash and cash equivalents
B As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Cash on hand 0.84 1.58
Bank halances - -
- Current Account 165.95 3,959 48
Total 166.79 3,961.06
Note 10 - Other bank balances
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Margin money deposits 46.75 6.75
Unclaimed dividend account [refer a note below) 24.24 2936
Total 70.99 36.11
Note : Unclaimed divdiend are not due for deposit to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.
MNote 11 - Short term loans and advances
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Loans to Employees 24.05 5.08
Total 24.05 5.98
Note 12 - Other current assets
Particul As at March 31, As at March 31,
articuiars 2021 2020
Prepaid expenses 36.43 24.29
Deposit with govt. authorities (refer note below) 227.60 25.22
Advances to Suppliers 381.27 50.08
Others 241.88 142.43
Interest Receivable 0.92 0.18
Total 888.10 242.20

Note: Deposit with government authorities includes 1,58,62,806/-(Deposit of Rs. 1,61,55,946/-less input tax credit taken

towards IGST of Rs. 2,93,140/-) deposit with custom department.
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Note 13 - Share capital and other equity Share capital [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020

Authorised shares

6000000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each G00,00 GO0.00

(Previous Year 6000000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each)
Issued, subscribed shares

3228000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
{Previous year 3228000 Equity Shares) 32280 32280
32280 322.80

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
3209000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each

(Previous year 3209000 Equity Shares) 320,90 320,90

320.90 320.90

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares Nos. Nos.

Balance as at 31st March 2020 3209000 3209000
Changes during the period - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 3209000 3209000

(b] Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The comypany has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 pershare. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,
The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholdersinthe ensuing Annual General Meeting,
In the event of liquidation af the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
ofall preferentialamounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
Thedistribution will bein propartion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.
During last five years no shares were alloted without payment being received in cash or as bonus shares, however company were bought back and
extinguished 2,772,000 equity shares during the financial year 2014-15.
Amountoriginally received on foreited shares Bs. 1,39,350/ - (Inclusive of share premium} included in Reserve & Surplus

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
(as perthe register of members ofthe Company are as under] :-

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Nos. of % holding Nos. of Shares % holding in the
Shares in the class class
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid
Mr 5.K.]Jain - - 7949244 24.90
Mr. Sajal Jain fo5389 27890 06496 18.90
Mrs. Sreelelcha Jain 207702 6.47 207702 6.47
Mr. Saumya [ain 538351 16,78 28000 87

As par records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the ahove shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

—— —_—
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Note 14 - Other Equity

{Amounts are in lalkhs unless stated otherwise)

- G T As at March 31, Az at March 31,
eserves and Surplus 2021 2020

Capital Redemption Reserve 27.20 27.20

Balance Brought Forward 27.20 27.20

Share Forfeiture Account

Balance Brought Forward 1.39 1.39

1.39 1.39

General Reserve

Balance Brought Forward 1.484.11 1,309.11

Transfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Account _350.00 175.00
1,834.11 1,484.11

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements 11,965.18 10,377.61

Profit for the year 3.559.17 1,810.71

Less: Appropriations

Dividend distributed on equity shares Bd. 18 48.14

Transfer to General Reserve 350,00 175.00

Closing Balance 15,110.17 11,965.18

TOTAL 16,972.87 13,477.88

Note 15 - Other non-current financial liabilities

il As at March 31, As at March 31,

L2021 2020
Leased Deposits 48.30 7380
Total 48.30 73.80

Nate 16 - Delerred tax liabilities

As at March 31, Asat March 31,

Particulars 2071 2020
Deferred tax liabilites arising on account of :

Deferred tax asset arising on account of Provision for employee benefits 7.03 6.18
Deferred tax asset arising on account of Financial assets at fair value through P&L 18.92 4.86
TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 25.95 11.04
Deferred tax liability arising on account of Difference between accounting base and

tax base of PPE 124.76 13193
TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 124.76 131.93
Diff. between accounting base and tax base of PPE 98.81 12089
Total 98.81 120.89
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{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 17 - Trade payables

ticul As at March 31,  As al March 31,
e 2021 2020
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises {Refer Note below]. 507
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 53258 277.10
Total 53258 Z82.a7
a) DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, MEDMUM AND SMALL ENTERPRISES As at March 31, Ax al March 31,
2021 2020
(i} The principal amount and the interest due thereon (o be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any sopplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amoun! due lo micro and small enterprises oo 5.07
Interest due on above .00 0.002
(i} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Ac, 2006, along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year Mil Nil
iit} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Mil Nil
paymenl (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear)
but without adding the intcrest specified onder Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006, il Hil
iv] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 204
each accounting year
v] The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nil Mil
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditore under sectivn 23 of the Micro Small and Media Enterprise
Development Act, 2006,
Note 18 - Other current financial liabilities
Particak As at March 31,  Asat March 31,
2021 2020
a) Statutory dues payable 285.15 150.08
b} salaries due o director 37793 16597
c} Advance received from dienis L7094 6425
d] Other Liabilities 16.38 BH7
e} Undaimed Dividend 2424 2936
Total TH1.63 418.52
Note 19 - Employee Benelit Obligation
. As at March 31,  Asal March 31,
Particulars 2021 2070
Provision [or pratuity [net) {Refer Note 25) 13432 13927
Tolal 13432 139.27
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Note 20 - Revenue from operations [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated ntherwi.l;e]
Asat March 31, AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Operating Income :
Manufactured goods 14,415.32 11,511.56
Traded goods - 13.92
14,415.32 11,525.48
Sale of products comprises :
Manufactured goods
Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 14,415.32 11,511.56
Traded goods
[Mexite & other chemicals - 13.92
14,415.32 11,525.48

Note 21 - Other income

Particulars

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,

2021 2020

Dividend income from investmenls 50.43 48.88
Dividend on Mutual Fund .69 B4.51
Interest received 153.12 BR.93
Interest received on Debenture 0.03 0.03
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Investments 15.96 91.80
Met gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 5833 55.91
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.20 -

Sale of Scraps 4.39 6.92
Rent & Facility Charges 12643 169.06
Sundry Balances w/back 0.40 0.05
Total 410.08 548.09

Note 22 - Cost of materials consumed

Asat March 31, AsatMarch 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Opening Stock 46688 LOS2.40
Add: Purchases
Ulexite 6,448.98 4.960.74
Sulphuric Acid 60277 57472
Lithium . 999.41
Others 54.91 50,25
7.973.54 763752
Less ; Closing Stock 1,813.99 86688
Total 6,159.55 6,770.64
(a) Raw Matertals Consumed Comprise :
exite 5,512.31 5111.10
Sulphuric Acid 593.19 57063
Lithium Hydroxide 1.14 1,033.97
Others £2.91 4894

(b} Value of imported raw materials consumed and the value of all indigenous raw materials similarly consumed and the percentage of each to

the total consumption,

As at March As at March 31,
Particulars 31,2021 ] 2020 W
Raw Materials
(i} Imported 5,513.45 #9.51 £,155.35 a0.91
(i) Indigenous Hida. 140 10.449 615,29 9.0%
6,159.55 100,00 6,770,604 100,00

Note 23 - Purchase of Traded goods

Particulars

Asat March 31, Asat March 31,
2021 2020

Ulexite & others

= 1040

- 10.40
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Note 24 - (Increase) /Decrease in inventories {Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,

Particulars

2021 2020
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods £85.37 31.37
Work-In-progress 17.78 24.55
103.15 55.92
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 63.00 B5.37
Woark-in-progress 11.85 17.78
7485 103,15
28.30 (47.23)

Note 25 - Employee benefit expenses

Patiiilais As at March 31, Asat March 31,

2021 2020
Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Ex-pratia 937.53 676,10
Contribution to E.S.LC, 355 4.08
Contribution to Provident Fund A40.09 34.67
Provision / Contribution to Group Gratuity and LIC 13.35 11.24
Workmen & Staff Welfare expenses 18.19 11.12
Total 1,012.71 737.21

{a] As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee benefits”, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan :
Contribution ta Provident Fund is Bs. 40,09 Lakhs /- {Previous Year Rs. 34.67 Lakhs] , ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund Includes Rs. 3.55 Lakhs-
(Previous Year Rs. 4.08 Lakhs).

Defined Benefit Plan :

Gratuity and Leave Encashment:

The Company makes partly annual contribution to the Employees' Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance
Corporation of India, a funded benefit plan for qualifying employvees. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days service for each completed year
of service or part thereof depending on the date of joining. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service.

Gratuity Funded Leave Encashment
Non Funded Non Funded Non Funded MNon Funded
Asat March 31, AsatMarch AsatMarch 31, Asat March 31,
2021 31,2020 2021 2020

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit Obligation:

Assumptions

Present Value of obligation as at beginning of vear 13927 122.84 24.54 17.80
Current service cost 12.82 10,59 687 6.50
Prior service cosl - - - -
Interest cost 8.75 B.22 1.05 095
Actuarial {gain) / loss 3.81 2.36 14.87 H92
Benefits paid [30.32) [4.74) [19.39) (7.62)
Present Value of obligation as at end of the year 13432 139.27 2795 24.54
Change in Plan assets

Plan assets at period beginning , at fair value 122.84 10550 - -
Expected return on plan assets a.22 757 - -
Actuarial (gain) / loss (1.45) [1LE1] - -
Contribution 17.82 1492 19.39 T.62
Benefits paid {30.32) [4.74) [19.29] (7.62)

122.84 - -

Fair value of Plan assets at end of the year 117.11
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Note 25 - Employee benefit expenses (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Eair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of plan assets at beginning of year 122684 10590 - -
Actual return on plan assets 6.77 6.76 - -
Contributions 17.82 14.92 19.39 7.62
Benefits paid [30.32) [4.74) (19.39) (7.62)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of vear 117.11 122.84 - -
Funded status - - - -
Excess of Actual over estimated return Nil Nil Nil il

The Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and
statements of profit and loss

Present value of obligations as at the end of vear 134.32 139.27 27.95 2454
Fair value of plan assets as al the end of the vear 117.11 122.84 - -
Funded status - - - -
Met asset/(liability) recognized in balance sheet 17.21 16.43 27495 24.54
Expenses for the year

Current service cost 1282 10.59 6.B7 650
Prior service cost . = - .
Intarest cost on benefit obligation /875 822 1.05 0.95
Expected return on plan assets {8.22) [(7.57) - -
Met actuarial (gain}/loss recognised in the year - - 14.87 f92
Total Expenses Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 13.35 11.24 22,79 14.37

.-!u:tunal [gam],.n"l-usses due to Demngraph:r: Abbumptmn r.hdnges in DEQ - - - -

Acturial [gain)/Los=es due to Financial Assumption changes in DEOQ 23.13 6.11 - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Losses due to Experience on DBEQ [19.32) (3.75) - -
Returnm on Plan Asets [Greater )/ Less than Discount rate 1.45 .81 - -
Met actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year . - - .
Total actuarial [gain/loss included in OCI) 5.25 3.17 - -
Assumptions Gratuity Funded Leave Encashment

As at March 31, AsatMarch  Asat March 31,  As at March 31,

2021 31,2020 2021 2020

Discount Rate 7.05% 6.82% T.05% 6.82%
Employee Turnover 7.BBY% 5000 G008, 5.00%
Salary Escalation 7.00% 5.00%; F.00% 5.00%
Mortality [ndian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14] Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases , considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority , promotion, and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Note 26 - Net finance costs

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Interest on Waorking Capital 039 010
Other Interest 3.13 0.04

Total 3.52 0.14
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[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note 27 - Other expenses

: As at March 31, Asat March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Stores, Spares and Packing 39436 26490
Power & Fuel 536.58 545.44
Repairs & Maintenance (Building) 2.59 39.07
Machinery & Electrical Repairs 113.31 100.6%
Water Charges 17.67 14.61
Factory Expenses 400.55 335.89
Insurance Charges 14.81 1002
Repairs-Others 10.29 14.62
Rent and Other Charges 74.14 B7.76
Rates & Taxes 3.23 3.45
Discount 063 -
Donation 212 11.00
Freight, Coolie & Cartage 177.23 38.64
Commission and Brokerage 51147 35693
Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution +4.00 37.52
Travelling and conveyance 24.52 BO.EL
Telephone charges 413 547
Frinting & Stationery 276 3.82
Directors Sitting Fees 1.58 1.80
Vehicle Expenses 13.84 2391
Auditors' Remuneration 14.49 16.04
Legal and Professional charges 234.39 67.37
Bank Charges 556 .61
Goods & Service Tax 213 n.az
Loss on sale of Shares 0.01 -
Advertisement & Sales Promaotion 186.32 112.49
General Expenses 19.66 23.14
Total 2,812.35 2,190.35
Consumahle Stores & Spares and Packing :

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
a) Imported - -
h] Indigenons 39436 264,910

Note 28 - Taxation
-Income tax expense

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2021 2020
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 1,228.80 330.80
Adjustments for current tax of prier periods B2 -
Total current tax expense 1,236.92 53680
Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets - -
[Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities (9.20) (7.52)
Total deferred tax expense/ (benefit) (2.20) (7.52)
Income tax expense 1,227.72 529.28
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[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwisea)

The reconciliation ol estimated income tax expenses at Indian statutory income tax rate to income @x expenses reported in the statement of

profit & loss is as follows

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Profit before taxes 4,701.51 2,283.27
Indian statutory income tax rate 22.17% 22.17%
Expected income lax expenses 1,183.28 S06.20
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported

income tax expense

[ncome exempt from tax [1Z£.6%9) [29.57)
Tax exemptions [9B.39) (10.76)
Expenses Disallowed 47.80 62.HY
Tax on income at different rate - 31.51
Interast on Income Tax 24.07 o
Others (net}) 44.74 (30.99)
Total Income lax expenses 1,228.80 529.28
Note 29 - Earning Per Share:

Asat March 31, As at March 31,

Particular 2021 2020

Profit after Tax 347379 1,753.99
Mo, of shares outstanding FZ09000 FE09000
Welghted Average Mo, of shares + potential shares o/s 3Z09000 3209000
Earning per share | Basic) 108.25 54.66
Earning per share (Diluted) 108.25 54.66

Note 30 - Value Of Imports On C.1LF. Basis:

Particular

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2021 2020
Raw Materials 5,216.94 4,955.24
Note 31 - Expenditure In Foreign Currency:
Asat March 31, Asat March 31,
Particular 2021 2020
1. Foreign Travels - 25.76
2. Others 0.15 -
Note 32 - Remuneration to Auditors:
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
Particular 2021 2020
As Auditors 11.55 14.54
Other Services 294 1.50
Total 14.49 16.04

Details of transactions between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:
Note 33 - Details of Related parties transactions are as under :

a) List of related parties and relationship where control exists or with whom transactions were entered into:

Subsidiary
Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited

Key Management Personnel

Mr. 8. K.Jain, Chairman and Managing Director [ upto 18th October, 2020)
Mr, Sajal Jain, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer (from 1st December, 2020)

Relative of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Saumya Jain, Business Development Manager
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b} Transactions during the year with related parties:

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

St z Key Management Relatives of Key
No. sl bk Subsidiary Company Personnel Managerial Person
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 | 2019-20
1 |Indoborax Infrastrucutre Private Ltd
Dividend Received from subsidiary 50.00 48.50
Investment in Equity shares of subsidiary 939.00 -
2 |Payments to & provision for Directors'
remuneration
Mr.5.K.Jain 140.41 119.23
Mr. Sajal Jain 333.04 119,23
3 |Salary to Relative
Mr. Saumya [ain 63.68 46.80
) Amount outstanding at the year end
5r. ; Key Management Relatives of Key
No. ARSI Subslclary Company Personnel Managerial Person
2020-21 | Z019-20 | 2020-21 2019-20 | Z020-21 | Z019-20
1 |Outstanding Payables
Mr.5.K.Jain 116.44 81.59
Mr. Sajal Jain 261.49 84.37
Mr. Saumya [ain 3.29 8.28

Note 34 - Financial instruments

i) Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels
of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inpuls to the measurement, as
follows:

Level 1: quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: The fair value of [inancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigques

which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

&>
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Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

(Amaounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Asat 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Shares 21.16 - 104093 1.062.09
Mutual funds 301036 - - 3.010.34
Other 0.41 - 0.03 .44
Total financial assets 3,021.03 - 1,040.96 4,072.89
As at 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

Shares 13.83 - 101,93 11575
Mutual funds 1,784.71 - - 1,784.71
Other 0.39 . 0.03 0.43
Total financial assets 1,798.92 - 101.96 1,900.88

(ii) Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

The use of quoted market prices for investments in shares and mutual funds.

Mote 35 -Financial Risk Management:
i) Financial Instruments by Cartagory :

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars FVTOCI Amaortised FYTOCI Amaortised
Cost Cost
Financial assets :
Investments
mutual funds Shares and Bord 3.031.93 - 179892 -
Loans
to others * 3842 g 38534
to ather body corporates - 1.4868.93 . 1,735.11
Trade receivables - B73.84 - BOL50
Security deposits - 4445 - 37.63
Cash and cash equivalents - 166,79 - 396106
Unclalmed dividend account = 24,24 . 29.36
Total 3,031.93 2,978.68 1,798.92 6,952.00
Financial Liabilities
Trade pavables - 532.58 . 28217
Oither financial liahilities - BOY.494 - 465232
Total - 1,342Z.52 - 774.50
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a)  The carrying value of trade receivables, securities deposits, insurance claim receivable, loans given, cash and bank balances and other financial assets
recorded at amortised cost, is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value,
The carryiing value of borrowings, trade payvables and other financial Habilitles recorded at amortized cost is considered to be a reasonable approximation
of fairvalue.

it} riskmanagement
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liguidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the spurces of risk which the entity is exposed to and
how the entity manages the risk and the related impactin the financial statements ;

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, derivative ?ﬂ?“k ‘_‘;F'“S_“S-
financial instruments, Aging analysis e L e
financial assers measured at of asset base, credit limits
amartised cost ﬂt‘ld I:OliillemL
Rolli bl Availahility of committed
Liguidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities i o Las o credit lines and
s borrowing facilities

Market risk - foreign
exchange

Recopnised financial assets
and liabilities not
denominated in Indian
rupee [Rs.)

Cash flow forecasting
sensitivity analysis

Material bought on
receipt of documents, if
material hought on credit

same are hedged,

Market risk - interest rate

Borrowings at variable rates

Sensitivity analysis

Mix of borrowings taken at
fixed and floating rates

Market risk - Ulexite,
Lithium & other raw
material prices

Payables linked to ulexite prices

Sensitivity analysis

The ulexite and other raw
materlal is purchase at
the prevailing price from suppliers.

Market risk - security price

Investments in equity, Mutual fund

Sensitivity analysis

Portfolio diversification

The Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department of the Company under policies approved by the Board of Directors, The
Board of Directors provide written principles for overall risk management, a5 well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
Interest rate risk, market risk, creditrisk and investmentof excess lquidiny.

A) CreditRisk
Lredit risk is the risk that a customer or counter party to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due to the Company causing financial
lnss, It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with hanks and financial institutions, security deposits, loans given and principatly from credic
exposures i customers refating to outstanding receivables, The Company's maximum exposure to creditriskis limited to the carrving amount of financial
assets recognlsed at reporting date.
The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, [dentified either individually or by the Company, and incorporates
this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasenable cost, external credit ratings andfor reports on customers and other
counterparties are ohtained and used. The Company’s policy is to deal only with credibworthy counterparties.
In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any company of
counterparties having similar characteristics, Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various parts of India, The Company has very
limited history of customer default, and considers the creditquality of trade receivables that are not past due or lmpaired to be good.
The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, mutual funds, bank deposits, loans and derivative financial instruments is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable organisations with high quality external credit ratings.
Company pravides for expected credit losses on financial assets by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses, Since
the assets have very low credit risk, and are for varied natures and purpose, thereis no trend that the company can draws to apply consistently to entire
population, For such financial assets, the Company's policy is to provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for
lifetime expected credit osses upon significant increase in credit risk, The Company does not have any expected loss based impalrment recognised on
suchassets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions are disclosed under each sub-category ol such financial assets,

Detail of trade receivables thatare past due is given below: (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated oth ise)

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Mot due 73822 549,00
0-30 days past due 126,66 229.95
F1-60 days past due 319 4.55
61-90 days past due 124 14.25
Muore than 453 566
*rounded off to nil -

B73.84 B03.50

————————— ————————————————
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B} Liquidity risk
Prudent liguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed facilities.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cazh and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Company takes into account the liguidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liguidity management policy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liguid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios
againstinternal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans,
Financing arrangements
The Company had obtained credit facility of Bs, 1035 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Lud, however the same has not been utililzed,
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company's financial Habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative
financial liabilitles. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Aows. Balances due within 12 months equal thelr carryving

amountsas the impact of discounting is not significant, [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Payable on Less than 1 Less than 1-2 Less than 2-3 More than 3 Total
31-Mar-21
demand year VEar year Vear
Borrowings . - - . -
Trade payable 515.42 17.17 532.58
Other financial labilities B2.18 67946 - - - Tel64
Total 597.60 679,46 - - 17.17 1,294.22
Payable on Less than 1 Less than 1-2 Less than 2-3 More than 3 Tolal
31-Mar-20
demand year year year year
Borrowings = - - - . .
Trade payable 27612 - - - 605 28217
Other financial liabilities 9362 32491 - - - 41853
Total 369.74 32491 - = 6.05 THLTO

C) Marketrisk-foreign exchange
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risl arising from foreign carrency transactions, primarily with respect to U5 Dollar Foreign exchange risk
arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. The Company, as per its overall
strategy imports raw materials on the basis of market demand, The Company does not use forward contracts and swaps for speculative purposes,
Sensitivity
The sensitivity to profit or loss from changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from Anancial instruments denominated in USD. In case of a reasonahly
possible change in INE/USD exchange rabes of + /- 2% (previous yvear +/-2%] at the reporting date, keeping all other variables constant, there would have
heenanimpacton profitsof INR 208.11 Lakhs (previous year INR 80.59 Lakhs).
D} Interestrate risk
i} Liabilities
The Company's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-rerm financing. At 31 March 2021, the Company is exposed to changes
inmarket interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates.
[mterest rate risk exposure
Below lsthe overall exposure of the Company to interestrate risk

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Variable rate borrowlng - =
Fixed rate borrowing E E
Total Borrowings b =
Sensitivity

The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of a reasonably possible change in interest rates of + /- 50 basis points (previous yvear: + /- 50 hazis points], kegping
all other variables constant, wauld have resulted inan impact on profits by INR 0,003 Lakhs (Previous vear INR 0,008 Lakhs)
ii) Assets
The Company’s financlal assets are carrled at amortised cost and are at fixed rate only. They are, therefore, not subject to Interest rate rlsk slnce nelther the
carpying amount nor the lutuee cash Dows will Ructuate because of a change i markel inteérest Fates,

E) Pricerisk
Exposure from investments in mutual funds;
The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments in mutual funds held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value
through other comprehensive income, Tomanage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company investonly in liguid Funds,
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Sensitivity

The sensitivity to profit or lossin case of an Inerease in price of the Instrument by 5% keeplng all other variables constant would have pesulted in an impact
onprofits by 303.19 Lakhs [previous year INR374.11 Lakhs).

Exposure from trade payables:

Company generally import on adavance payment or on payment at the time of receipt documents, If there is any transaction of imports on credit basis,
thensuch trnsaction is hedged.

Note 36 - Capital Management:

The Company’ s capital management objectives are: to ensure the Company's ability to continue 2 a going concern, to provide an adequate return to
shareholders. The company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of
balance sheet.

The Managemint asseszes the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive
leverags, This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and
miakes adjustments taitin the light of changes in the economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The company monitors the capital on the basis of following ratios:

1. Equity Ratio (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Total equity 17,293.77 13,708.78

Total assets 18,999 .37 14,834.93

Equity Ratio 91.02% 93.02%

Z. Debt Equity Ratio

As at March 31
. L 3 020
Particulars 2021 et bl D
Net debts )
Total equity 17.293.77 13,758.78
Debt Equity Ratio 0,00 LO0%
Dividends
{i] Equity shares
Final dividend for the vear 64.18 48.14
ended 31 March 2020 of Rs. 2,00 per share 32090 G418

(i1} Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021
Note 37 -Acquisition of shares in Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited :

Board of Directors at its meeting dated 22nd March, 2021 had approved the investment in the right issue of Indoborax
Infrastructure Private Limited. The valuation arrived at Net Assets Method valuation and certificate obtained by Registered Valuer.
As per the valuations The Company has invested 939,00 lakhs in rigth issue,

Details of the Purchase consideration are as follows:

a) Purchase consideration : {Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Amounts
Cash paid 939.00
TOTAL 939.00

b) working of fair value of acquisition :

Deposits 5247
L.oans & Advances 232
Duties & Taxes 0.07
Trade Receivables 4,25
Cash & Bank Balances 37.55
96.66
Liabilities :
Trade Payables 2.63
Other liabilities 0.15
278
Total Net Assets at fair value 9388
Equity shares before right issue 10,000
Fair value per equity share Rs. 939
The total value of 1,00,000 shares @ 10/- per share premium of Rs, 929/- per shares 939

Note 38 - Commitment and Contingent Liabilty :

a) In 1992, 5TC of India Ltd had claimed for Rs. 9.02 Lakhs towards price difference & others, against this, Honourable Bombay High
Courtordered Company to pive bank guarantee of Rs. 1.65 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1.65 lakhs)

b) Balance instalment towards work - In - progress of Rs. 2086.06 Lakhs, payvable on the basis of various stages of completion of project
over the period of five years.

¢} i) Thecompany has created a fixed deposit of Rs. 31 Lakhs marked lien in favour of Customs towards security against imported raw
material.
if} The company has received show cause notice amounting to Rs. 1057.33 Lakhs under the provisions of Customs Act. In view of
Hon'ble Supreme Courtdecision and legal opinion, the company is confident to successfully defend and nullify the notice. Therefore,
no provision for contingnet liahility has been made.
Note 39 - Corporate Social Responsibility ;

The Company has incurred INR 4400 lakhs (previous yvear INR 3752 Lakhs) towards Social Responsibility activities. [tis included in
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, no amount has been spent on construction / acquisition of an asset of the Company and
the entire amount has been spentin cash. The amount required to be spentunder Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 forthe year
2021 is INR 43.98 lakhs Le. 2% ol average nel profits for last three financial years, calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013,
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40

41

42

43

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
setout in the Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities,

During the year under review, the company has further invested a sum of Rs. 939,00 Lakhs by way of Rights offer by subsidiary named
Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. The company has received 100000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs, 929/ -
. The said right price offer was on the basis of value determined by an independent valuer,

COVID- 19 effects and assessment :

The Company’s office and manufacturing facilities remained shut due to lockdown imposed by Government of India, which has
impacted its operations of the Company.

The Company has resumed its operation and started manufacturing facilities in phased manner as per the directives the
Government of India. The Company is adhering to COVID-19 puidelines issued by the Government ol India, State Governmentand the
Local Authorities forits operations.

As the business situation is very dynamic, the company is closely monitoring it. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different from
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements, The company has taken into consideration the impact in its
financial statements as at 31st March, 2021. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

The previcus year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make in compliance with the current
financial year.

Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements,

As per attached report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board Directors
For Pulindra Patel & Co,, Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
Chartered Accountants Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Firm Registration No. 115187W Managing Director & CFD Director

DIN-003 14855 DIN-D0148145
Haltndra Pata) Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No, 048991 DIN-(805789% DIN-00314916
Place : Mumbai g'::'gt“grmmﬂr Pravin Chavan
Date : 14th June, 2021 DIN-0255641 1 Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of INDD BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying conselidated financial statements of INDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as
the "Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries {Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group™), which comprise
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting pelicies (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated profit/loss,

consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As] specified under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013.
Cur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financlal Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics tssued by TCAT and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit matter
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information
The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises

the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does not inclhude the conselidated financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon.
Our opinion on the conselidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon,
[n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
inthe audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements:

The Holding Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financlal statements
in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 20013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial positon, consolidared
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
lor preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; malking
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ahility of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
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accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realisticalternative but to do so,
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and ofits associates and jointly controlled entities,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur obhjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whaole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high
level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decigions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
Wealso:

[i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or erron,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and pbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

(i1} Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls

[iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management

[iv]) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group te continue as a going concern, Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
maodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

(v] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS inanclal statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included In the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative Factors in (1} planning the scope of our audit work and [n evaluating the results of our
waork; and [if] toevaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
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independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, the auditor determines those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, In accordance with the
requirements of 54 701, the auditor describes these matters in the auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, the auditor determines that a matter should not be communicated in the
auditor’s report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of
such communication

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

[a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so faras itappears from our examination of those books and the reports of the otherauditors.

(£} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

[d]} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act.
(e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2021 taken on

record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, incorporated
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in Indiais
disgqualified ason 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act,

[F} With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness
ofsuch controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure.
(£] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16)

ofthe Act,asamended,
[nour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent to its

directors during the yearis in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies [(Audit and
Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position of
the Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities- Refer Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
iL. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, ifany, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
fiL. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, incorporated in India.
For Pulindra Patel & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FEN No. 115187W

Pulindra Patel
Place: Mumbai Proprietor
Date : 14" June, 2021 Membership No.048991

UDIN No. : 21048991AAAALHT339
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Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
As at March 31,  As at March 31,

Particulars Note

2021 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 1 140662 1.486.13
Capital work-in-propress 1 108.52 108.52
Investment in Properties 2 T.457.31 3,065.57
Financial Assets
I, Investments 3 2157 14.22
ii. Loans 4 1.897.15 2,150.28
iii, Other Financial Assets E 46.28 39.45
Total non-current assets 10,937.45 6,864.17
Current assets
Inventories G 2597810 1.035.39
Financial assets
L Investments 7 3.01036 1,784.71
ii. Trade receivables B BTR.09 BO7.75
iit. Cash and cash equivalents 9 202.56 4,095.40
iv. Bank balances other than [iii} above 10 70,99 36.11
v. Loans 11 24.05 598
Other current assets 12 891,30 246.27
Total current assets 8,055.45 8,011.61
Total assets 18,992.90 14,875.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 32090 320,90
Other equity 14 16,4960.00 13,512.95
Equity attributable to owners of Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited 17,280.90 13,833.85
Mon-contralling interests - -
Total eqguity 17,280.90 13,833.85
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Other Financial Liabilitles 15 4830 73.80
Deferred Tax Liabilites 16 G9H.H1 1200.89
Total non-current liabilities 147.11 194.69
Current liabilities

Financial liahilities
i. Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 17 - 5.07

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 533.07 27744
small enterprises

1. Other linancial liabilitles 18 Tod.88 421.61
Employes henefit obligation 19 134.32 139.27
Income tax liabilities (net) 132.62 3.85
Total liabilities 1,564.89 H47.24
Total equity and liabilities 18,992.90 14,875.78
As per attached report of even date,
Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements For and on behalf of the Board Directors
For Pulindrs Pated &.Co., Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
[E?Waﬁ:ereu:.l ."'l.cn_:runmnrs Sajal Jain Arun Sureka
Firny Reglateation No 13167 Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN-00314855 DIN-00148145

Flindea Paie] Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Proprietar Director Director
Membership No. 348991 DIN-08057896 DIN-DO314916
Place : Mumbai Eﬂ:ﬁﬂfﬁmﬂf Pravin Chavan

Company Secretary

Date : 14th June, 2021 DIN-03556411
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Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Year ended March  Year ended March

MITED

|
3

Particulars Note 31, 2021 31, 2020
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 20 14,415.32 11,525.48
Other income 21 363.98 50438
Total income 1477930 12,034.86
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 22 6,159.55 6, 770.64
Purchase of Traded poods 23 08941 10.40
(Increase) fdecrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 24 (961.11) (47.23)
Employvee benefit expenses 25 101271 73721
Finance Cost i6 352 0.14
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 10746 13846
Other expenses 27 2H13.34 2.190.82
Total expenses 10,124.88 9,800.44
Profit before exceptional items and tax 4,654.42 2,234.42
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 4.654.42 223442
Income tax expense
= Current tax ZB 1,237.78 547 34
- Deterred tax 28 [9.20) (7.52)
Total tax expense,/(credit) 1,228.58 539.82
Profit from continuing operations 3.425.84 1,694.60
Profit for the vear 342584 1,694.60
Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2021
ftems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax relating to above
a) ltems That Will Not Be Reclassified To Prafit Or Loss 72.50 50,54
b) Income Tax Relating To [tems That Will Not Be Reclassified To Profit Or Loss 12.88 6.18
85.38 56.72
0OCI for the year B85.38 56.72
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,511.22 1,751.32
Net Profit attributable to:
a) Owners of the Company 3.425.84 1.69%4.60
b} Non Congrolling Interest - -
342584 Lasd.60

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to -
a} Owners of the Company #5.38 A6.7E
b] Non Controlling Interest - -

85.38 56.72

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
a) Owners of the Company 351122 1,751.32
b} Non Controlling Interest - -

3.511.22 1,751.32
Earmings per share 29
Basic 106,76 L2481
Diluted 106.76 52.81
Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per attached report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board Directors
For Pulindra Patel & Co,, Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
f:_harteret.:l Acl:c.!u ntants sajal [ain A S
Firm Registration No. 115187W Managing Director & CFD Director
i DIN-00314855 DIN-00148145
Pulindra Patel Sreelekha Jaln N K Mittal
Proprietor Director Director
Hcmhul‘*_-:hlp Mo 043991 HN-8057H%6 DIN-00314916
Govind Parmar Pravin Chavan

Place : Mumbai Director
Date :14th June, 2021 DEN-03556411

Company Secretary
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements
As per attached report of even date.

For Pulindra Patel & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 115 187W

Pulindra Patel
Proprietor
Membership Mo, 048991

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14th June, 2021

Ax at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2021 2020
A Cash flow from operating activities :
Profit before tax 465442 223442
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization for the year 107.46 13846
{Profit) /Loss on sale of Investment [Met) [15.496) (91.80)
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss - (59.91)
Met (profit] floss on disposal of property, plant and equipment [0.30) -
Dividend received (1:13) (B4.89)
Interest Income (157.05) (96.75)
Finance cost 3.52 014
[63.46] [194.75)
Operating profit before working capital changes 4.590.94 2,039.67
Adjustments for:
Decrease/Increase ln inventories [1.942.71) 130:73
Decrease/(increase) in non-current financial assets 246,31 {1,291.97)
Decrease,/(increase) in current financial assets (52.94) (1.43)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets {639.77) 83320
Increase in trade receivables [(7.34) 192.56
Increase in trade payables 250.56 B8.08
Increase in current financial liabilities #43.25 (138.32)
Increase in non-current financlal Habilites [25.50) {1.95)
Increase in other provisions [16.20% 13.25
{1,901.34) [175.85)
Cash generated from operating activities 2.689.02 1.863.682
Income Tax Paid (net) {1,114.27) {545.38)
{1,114.27} [545.38)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,575.35 131844
Cash flow from investing activities:
Furchase of property, plant and equipment [28.11) (30.68)
Proceeds from government subsity - 345.62
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.47 =
Purchase of Investments (3,720.57) [14,563.74)
Investment in Property (4.391.74) -
Proceeds from redemption of investments, net 2,581.28 16,651.41
Interest received 157.05 96,75
Dividend received 1.13 84,589
Net cash used in investing activities [5400.49) 258425
Cash flow from financing activities:
Interest paid [3.52}) [n14)
Dividends Pald {Including Dividend Distribution Tax) [64.18] {58.11)
Net cash generated from financing activities [67.70] {58.25)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents [(A+B+C) [3,892.84) 384444
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year &,095.40 25096
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 202.56 4,095,440

For and on behalf of the Board Directors
Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Sajal Jain

Managing Director & CFO
DIN-00314855
Sreelekha Jain

Director

DIN-D8057896

Govind Parmar
Director

DIN-03556411

Arun Sureka
Director
DIN-00148145

N K Mittal
Director
DIN-00314916
Pravin Chavan
Company Secretary
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Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL : [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars MNote No. of shares Amaount
Issued, subseribed and fully paid-up shares

Equity share of Rs. 10 each

Balance as at 31 March 2020 13 F209000 32090
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 13 3209000 32090
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserve & Surplus
Capital Share
Redemption Forfeiture General Reseve Retained Earning Total
Reserve Account
Ealance as at 31 March 2019 27.20 1.39 1300911 1048204 11.819.74
Prafit for the year - - - 1,694,610 1,694,640
Trasfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Account - - 175.00 . 175.00
Transfer to General Reserve - - - (175.00]) [175.00)
Other comprehensive ncome - - - 50.54 5054
Income tax telating ta ttems that will tot be reclassified to profit or loss - = - 618 6,18
Totail comprehensive lncome 27.20 129 148411 12,058.36 13571.06
Dividends distributed to equity shareholders - - - {48.14) [45.14])
Corporate dividend tax on dividend paid to Equity Shareholders - - - {9.97}) {297
Balance as at 31 March 2020 ZT.20 1.39 148411 1Z,00ML.25 13,512.95
Profit for the vear - - - 342584 342584
Trasfer from Surplus in Profit and Loss Account . 4 350,00 ; 350,00
Transfer to General Reserve - - - (350.00) (350,000
Dther comprehensive income - - - T2.50 7250
Income tax telating to ttems that will tet be reclassified te profit or loss - - £ 12.88 12.88
Total comprehensive income 27.20 1.39 1.834.11 1516147 1702417
Dividends distributed to equity shareholders g = - (64.17] (64.17)
Corporate dividend tax on dividend paid to Equity Shareholders - - - - =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 27.20 1.39 1,834.11 15,097.30 16,960.00

a} Capital Redemption Reserve
The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount in
Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought bacl.

b] Share Forfeiture Account
Amount originally received on 19000 equity shares, inclusive of share premium on forfeiture of shares transferred to Share Forfeiture
Account,

] General Reserves
The Company created general reserve in earlier years pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act wherein certain percentage of
profits were required to be transferred to general reserve before declaring dividends. As per the Companies Act 2013, the requirement to
rransfer profits to general reserve |s not mandatory. General reserve s a free reserve available to the Company.,

As per attached report of even date, For and on behalf of the Board Directors

For Pulindra Patel & Co., Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
Chartered Accountants

: ; Sajal Jain Arun Sureka

Firm Registration No. 115187W Managing Director & CFO Director

DIN-003 14855 DIN-00148145
Pulindra Fate] Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No, 048991 DIN-080578%96 DIN-00314916
Place : Mumbai Ef:",_,L';;,‘r“““‘“ r Pravin Chavan
Date :14th June, 2021 DIN-03556411 Company Secretary
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Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended
31st March 2021

Corporate Information

Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited [the Company) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India: Its shares are listed
on Stock Exchange in India. It has formed its subsidiary Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. The registered office is at 302, Link
Rose, Linking Road, Santacruz (West), Mumbai - 400054, The Company is engaged in manufacturing of Boron products and Lithium.

The Consolidated accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021 were consolidated on the basis of audited accounts presented by the
subsidiary Indeborax Infrastructure Private Limited.

a) General information and Compliance with Ind AS ;
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary (hereinafter referred

as group)
Name of the Subsidiary Principle activities Country nf Proportion of ownership interest in [%)
Incorporation
2020-21 2019-20
Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited Builders and Developers India 100% 100,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified by the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 are the Group's Tnd AS consolidated financial statements. For periods up to and including
the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group prepared its consolidated fnancial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act”), read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts] Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP).

Overall Consideration

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised
below, These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the Group has applied certain
accounting.

Basisof preparation

The Consolidated linancial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the Consolidated financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current
or non current as per the Group normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act,
2013 Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cyele as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification ol assets
and liabilities.

Subsidiary entity where the group exercise or controls 100% of its total share capital. The net assets and results of acquired businesses
are included inthe consolidated financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
of previous year. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a line-by- line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra group balances, intra group
transactions and the unrealised profits flosses, unless cost/revenue cannot be recovered.

b} Currentversus noncurrent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is classified as
currentwhenitis:

i Expectedtoberealised orintended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
il.  Held primarily for the purpose ol trading
iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

v, Cashorcash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least twelve months alter the reporting
period.

All ather assets are classified as non-current.
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Aliability is classified as current when :

i Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

fi.  Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading

iti. Itisdueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

v,  Thereisnounconditional right to defer the settlement of the lHability lor at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-currentassets and liabilities,

c) Property, Plantand Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost ol acquisition, The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost il capitalisation
criteriaare met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when It is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will low to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profitand loss as incurred.
Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives) ;
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method on assets located in Factory premises. The company
has followsed written-down value method of providing depreciation with respect to assets located al Head Office. The Depreciation is
computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule 11 the Act:
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, ifappropriate.

Description of Asset Etimuanet neenzl e e
years)

Office Building &0

Factory Building 30

Plant and equipment 20

Office equipment

Computers 3

Electric installation 10

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles a8

Leasehold improvements have been amortised over the estimated useful life of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is lower, The
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.
Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classilied as PPE when they meel the definition of PPE
asspocified inInd AS 16= Property, Plant and Equipment
De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
econamic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain orloss arising on de-recognition of the asset [calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset] is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised,

d) Impairmentofnon-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profitand loss.
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment
lossisreversed ifthe asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceads its carrving amount,
The impairrment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profitand loss,

e) Financialinstruments
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to thecontractual provisions of the financial
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement

i) Financial instruments at amortised cost - the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost ifboth the following conditions are
met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash Aows, and Contractual terms of
the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {(SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. All the debt instruments of the Group are measured at amortised cost,
Trade Receivablesand Loans:
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit losses, The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected
life af financial instrument,
Mutual Funds, Equity investment, bonds and other financial instruments :
Mutual Funds, Equity investment, bonds and other financial instruments in the scope of Ind As 109 are measured at fair value through
profit & loss account (FVOCIT]).
Financial liabilities
Imitial recognition and measurement
All financial labilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial
labilities isalso adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost.
Subseguent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, these Habilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. These liahilities
include borrowings.
De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the oblipation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de- recognition of the original lability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profitand loss,

N Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
for financial assets,
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash llows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive. When estimating the cash flows, the group is required to consider:

i.  Allcontractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life ofthe assets.

it.  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements thatare integral to the contractual terms.
Trade receivables
The Company applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109, financial instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of receivables,
Other financial assets
For recognitionof impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is provided.

g]l Inventories
Raw Material: Lower of costor net realisable value. Cost is determined on first In firstout {"FIFQ') basis,
Work in progress, are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of work in progress and manufactured finished goods
comprises direct material, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and
condition.
Finished goods: Lower of cost or net realisable value, Costis determined on FIFQ basis, includes direct material and labour expenses and
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal capacity for manufactured goods.
MNet realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs of necessary to make the sale,

h} ForeignCurrency Translation
Initial recognition
The Company's [inanclal statements are presented in INR, which s also the Group's functional currency. Transactions In forelgn
currencies are recorded oninitial recognition in the functional currency atthe exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Measurementat the balance sheet date
Foreign currency monetary items of the Group, outstanding at the balance sheel dale are restated al the year-end rates, Non-monelary
items which are carried at historical eost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fairvalue is determined.
Treatment of exchange difference
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Group's monetary items
atthe closing rate are recognised as income orexpensesin the period inwhich they arise.

i}  Incometaxes:
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income ("OCI7) or directly in equity.
Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income-tax Act.
Current income-tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss
(eitherin OClor in equity].
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The company has provided the current tax as per the announcement by the government of India on 20th September, 2019, vide The
Taxation Laws {amendment) Ordinance 2019, inserted a new section 115BAA in the Income Taxd Act, 1961 which provides an option to
thecompany [or payving income tax at reduced rate as per the provisions /conditions in the said sections.
Deferred income-tax is calculated using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, unused tax credits
or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income, This is assessed based on the Group's forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credit.
Deferred tax assets or liability arising during tax holiday period 15 not recognlsed to the extent it reverses out within the tax holiday
pericd. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxahble profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss {either in OC1 or in
equity].

i) Cashandcashequivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short- term highly liguid investments
(original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
change invalue,

k) Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits
i) Short Term Employee Benefits :
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of receiving emplovee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These
benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia.
ii) Defined contribution plans
Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government authorities, Employees State Insurance
Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Profit and
Loss Accountofthe vear when the contributions to the respective funds are due.
iii} Defined benefit plans
Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity benefit is considered as defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarialvaluation.
iv) Gratuity
The group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for
payment (o vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of given years of service. The company
makes contribution to employees group gratuity fund established by Life Insurance Corporation of India, Actuarial gains and losses
arising from changes inactuarial assumptions are recognised in the Profitand Loss account in the period in which they arise,

1) Operatingexpenses
Operating expenses are recognlsed in profit orloss upon utilisation of the service oras incurred.

m) Borrowingcosts
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a qualifying asset ave capitalised during the period
oftime that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, Other borrowing costs are expensed in the periodin
which they are incurred and reported in finance costs.

n} Fairvalue measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, at fairvalue at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sefl the asset or
transferthe liability takes place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
il.In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the mostadvantageous market must be accessible by the Group
The fair value of an asset or a lahility s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants actin their economic best interest,

o) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised only when there (s a presant obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation can be made atthe repaorting date, These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their presentvalues, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
I. Possibleobligations which will be conflirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or
ii. Present obligations arising from past events where itis not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
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or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingentassets are notrecognized. However, when inflow of economic benefitis probable, related assetis disclosed.

P} Earnings pershare
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus issue.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
welghted average number of shares outstanding during the period a re adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1] Business Combinations and Goodwill
Acquisition method
Acguisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method, The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss as incurred.
Atthe acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For
this purpose, the liabilities assumed Include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the
following assets and liabilities acquired ina business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:
a) deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employves benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with Ind A5 12 'Income Taxes' and Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;
b) Habilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share - based payments
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share based payment arrangements of the acguiree are measured in accordance with
Ind AS 102 “Share-based Payments” atthe acquisition date; and
c) assets (or disposal Groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with thatstandard.
When the Group acquires a business, itassesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. When a business
combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (Le. the date when the Group obtains controal) and the resulting gain or loss, IFany, is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 "Financial
Instruments”, is measured at fair value with changes in f@ir value recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. I the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subseguent its settlement is accounted for
within eguity.
Goodwill
Goodwlll is measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised lor non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the netidentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of impairment testing,
poodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liahilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. [f the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment lossis allocated first to reduce the carrying amountof any goodwill allocated to the unitand then to the other assets of the unit
pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating
unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss an disposal, Goodwlll disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unitretained.

r} Revenuerecognition
Sales ofgoods
IND AS115:
Revenue from Contracts with Custemers
Revenue from Contracts with Customers Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recoghition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue,
Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when it becomes effective. The core principle of Ind AS 115is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers inan amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled In exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:
Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
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Step 2: ldentify the performance obligation in contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (oras) the entity satisfies a performance obligation
Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognises revenue when [or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. The Company has completed its-evaluation of
the possible impact of Ind A5 115 and will adopt the standard [rom 1st April, 2018,
Interest Income
Interestincome is recognised on an acerual basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend
Dividends are recognised at the time the right to receive the payment is established.

5) Segmentinformation
The managing committee is considered to be the 'Chief Operating Decision Maker' (CODM) as defined in IND AS 108. The Operating
Segment is the level at which discrete financial information is available, The CODM allocates resources and assess performance at this
level. The Company has one operating segment Le. Chemical Manulacturing which includes Boron Products and Lithium Hydroxide.

t} Accounting for Lease:
Groupasalessee:
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
As perInd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the statement of
profitand loss.
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefils of ownership of the leased [tem are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected peneral inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary costincreases.
Groupasalessor:
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases, Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

u} GovernmentGrants:
Government grants / subsidies received towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of the concerned fixed
assets. Capital Subsidies under MP MSME Protsahan Scheme, 2017 is recognised to the extent the claims are accepted and settled.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 1 - Property, plant and equipment (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Furmiture
Particulars Buildings " yre 2™ 'ﬁ';'l::fr Wu‘:f'“"l’jm Vehicles Leased Land  Tatal '?.'T:,Tl;"iif
equipments

Gross biock

As at April 01, 2019 L112.96 135.89 1L676.24 73.37 269.01 10,06 3.277.53 108.52
Additinns 5 10,07 8.24 1.56 1444 - 3430

Deduction * - - 345.62 - - - 345.62 3.62
Asat March 31, 2020 1112.96 145.96 1,338.87 T4492 28344 1606 2,966.21 108.52
Additions - 0.17 827 577 13590 - 2811

Deduction - - - - 4.01 - 4.01

As at March 31, 2021 111296 L4613 1.347.14 g0.e9 293.33 1006 Z,990.31 108.52

Furniture
Particulars Buildings ﬁ“;"m“::“d Tﬁ“;::ff m“‘::::: i Vehicles Leasedland Total Eﬁf::;:;‘:;t’
equipments

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2019 296,31 G440 BOH.G6 53.36 23456 - 1,351.29

Depreciation charge during the year 40.57 11.49 5741 769 11.65 . 12879

Deduction - - - - - -

As at March 31, 2020 33n0.88 109,89 726.07 6104 24620 ; 1.480.08

Depreciation charge during the year 39.04 2.00 43.90 6.02 9.49 - 107 46

Deduction - - - - 384 - 3.84

As at March 31, 2021 37592 11889 TeuLT 6706 251.85 = 1,583.69

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 737.04 27.24 i i 13.63 41.48 10.06 1,406.62 108.52
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 77608 36.08 612.80 13.88 37.24 10.06 1,486.13 108.52
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 2 - Investment Property (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwize)
r As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Gross block

Opening gross carrying amount 3,065.57 3.065.57
Additions 4,391.74 -
Closing gross carrying amount 7457.31 3,065.57
Nel carrying amount as on March 31, 2021 745731 -

Met carrying amount as on March 31, 2020 - 3.065.57

(1) Amaunts recogrised in the statement of profit and loss for investment properties

. As at March 31, As at March 31,

Packicatis 2021 2020
Rental income 95,23 13488
[Firect operating expenses for property that
generated rental income [11.47] [10.80)
[irect operating expenses for property that did not
penerate rental income (20.27) (25.23)
Profit from investment properties before

My 63.49 98.85
depreciation
Depreciation - -
Profit from investment properties 63.49 98.85
(i) Leasing arrangements
Minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investiment
properties are as follows:

As at March 31, Az at March 31,

Particulars 2021 Z020
Within 1 year 84.00 92.00
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 vears 105.00 182.00
Later than 5 vears - -
Total 189.00 274.00

(1if} Fairvalue of investment properiy ason 31 st March, 2021 is Rs. 76,68, 74 Lakhs {38,25.00 Lakhs)

The company obtains independent valuations for its investment in properties, The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the company consider information fram a variety of sources

including:

*  Currentpricesin an active market for properties ofdifferent nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to
reflect those differences.

*  Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,

*  Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

The fair values of investment in commercial properties have been determined by Independent Valuer H. Mehta & Associates. The main
inputs used are the rental growth rates, expected vacancy rates, terminal vields and discount rates based on comparable transactions and
industry data. All resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3
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MNote 3 - Non - Current Investment [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Nao. OF No. Of
Particulars Share/Bond faakMarch 31, Share/Bond A AT March: 31,
: 2021 2020
Unit Umit
DOther Eguity [nstruments :
Ungquoted, fully paid up
Reliance Media Waorks Ltd A75 - 675 -
Investment in Equity Instruments
Quoted, fully paid up
At Fair value through OCI
Central Bank of India Ltd 3200 0.52 3200 0.39
Jaiprakash Associates Limited 4500 0.31 A500 0.05
Jindal Steel & Power Limited 300 1.03 300 025
Kamanwala Industries Limited 57395 2.63 57395 2.51
L & T Limited 00 12.77 00 T.26
Mational Thermal Power Limited 3600 3.83 3600 3.03
Magarjuna Constructions Company Limited = - 1500 .23
Punj Llovd Limited 1460 0,02 000 0.03
Reliance Comminucation Limited 2004 0.03 2000 0.01
Unity Projects Limited 2000 002 2000 (ERHI]
Investement in Debentures - fully paid up
Unquoted,
At Fair value through OCI
NTFC Led, Mon Convertible Debentures 3000 041 2000 0.39
21.57 14.22
Aggrezate amount of quoted investments 21.57 14.22
Aggregate market value of listed and guoted investments 21.57 14.22
Aggrepate amount of unguoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments .03 0oz
Note 4 - Long term loans and advances
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Unsecured, considered good
Loans- Intercorporate Deposits
Inter Corporate Deposits 1,488,93 1,735.11
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 296.44 330.31
Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good
Advance income-tax [(net of provision for taxation) 41.08 35.81
337.51 366,12
Provision for doubtful advances - -
337.51 36612
Other loans and advances, unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 59,93 49.05
Others(*) 1077 -
70.70 49.05
Taotal 1,897.15 2,150.28
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

(*] The Company recongnised ROU assets for the following assets categories:

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Right to use category Amount Amount

Lease hold land & Building 10.77 -
Dperating lease commitments as of 1st April, 2020 = i

Exemption of commitments for short-term leases = i

Exemption of commitments for leases of low value assets = i

Undiscounted future lease payments from operating leases 1092 -

Effect of discounting [(0.19) -

Lease liabilities as of March 31, 2021 10.73 -
Note 5 - Other non-current financial assets

Pariicilsie As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 46,28 39.45
Total 46,28 39.45
Note 6 - Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

Raw materials (Refer note 22 ) 1,813.99 BE6.88
Stock in Process 11.85 17.78
Finished goods 63.00 B5.37
Flat 989.41 -
Stock of Consumable Stores & Spare parts (at cost) 99.85 65.36
Total 2,978.10 1,035.39
Note? - Current Investment

Particulars Mao. ﬂfS!!are;MF As at March 31, No. OF * As at March 31,

Units 2021 Share/MF Units 2020

In Units OFf Mutual Fund - quoted

At Fair value through OCI

SH1 Magnum Low Duration Fund Growth 71077412 1,954,091 BO530.835 1,575.51
SB1 Magnum Ultra Short Term Fund Growth 22562998 1005546 E -
ICICI Prudential Liguid Plan-IF - - 208975.493 20920
Total 3,010,306 1,784.71
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 3.010.36 1,784.71
Aggregate market value of listed and quoted investments 3,010.36 1.784.71

Aggregate amount of unguoeted investments
Aggregate Provision for Impairment in the Value of Investments

Note B - Trade receivables

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

EURHEALS 2021 2020

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the

date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 4.45 4.25

Doubtful - -

Less : Provision for doubtful reveivables 4.45 4.25
4,45 4,25

Other receivables 873.64 B03.50

Unsecured, considered good - -

Total 878.09 807.75
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Mote 9 - Cash and cash equivalents

{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Cash on hand 1.15 1.91
Bank balances
- Current Account 201.41 3,990.29
- Fixed Deposit with banks - 103.20
Total 202.56 4,095.40

Note 10 - Other bank balances

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Margin money deposits 46,75 6.75
Unclaimed dividend account {refer note a below) 24.24 29.36
Total 70.99 36.11

Mote : Unclaimed divdiend are not due for deposit to the Investors Education and Protection Fund.

Note 11 - Short term loans and advances

Particulars

As at March 31,

2021

As at March 31,
2020

Loans to Employees

24.05

2.94

Total

Note 12 - Other current assets

24.05

5.98

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020

Prepaid expenses 36.44 24.29
Deposit with govt authorities (refer note below) 229.96 27.27
Advances to Suppliers 382.10 50.92
Others 241.88 142.43
Interest Receivable 0.92 1.35
Total 891.30 246.27

Note :Deposit with government authorities includes 1,58,62,806/-(Deposit of Rs. 1,61,55,946/-less input tax credit

taken towards 1GST of Rs. 2,93,140/-) deposit with custom department.

Note 13 - Share capital and other equity

Share capital
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
2021 2020
Authorised shares
6000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 600.00 600.00
(Previous Year 6000000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)
Issued, subscribed shares
3228000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
{Previous year 3328000 Equity Shares) 322.80 322.80
322.80 322.80
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
3209000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 3209000 Equity Shares) 320.90 320.90
32090 132090
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(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity Shares Nos. Rs. In Lakhs
Balance as at 31st March 2020 3209000 32090
Changes during the period - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 3209000 320.90

b} Terms/rightsantached toequity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Bs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liqguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders,
During last five years no shares were alloted without payment belng received in cash or as bonus shares, however company were bought
back and extinguished 2,72,000 equity shares during the financial year 2014-15.
Amount originally received on foreited shares Ry, 1,39,350/- (Inclusive of share premium] included in Reserve & Surplus,

{c) Detailsofshareholders holding more than 5% sharesin the Company
(as perthe register of members of the Company areas under) -

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2021
Nos.of % holding

AsatMarch 31, 2020
Nos. of Shares % holding in the

Shares  in the class class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each fully paid
Mr. 5.K.Jain - . 799244 24.91
Mr. Sajal Jain 895389 27.90 al6d9a 18,90
Mrs. Sreelekha Jain 207702 6.47 207702 647
Mr. Saumya Jain 538351 16.78 28000 (LB87

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of

shares.

Note 14 - Other Equity

AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
Reserves and Surplus 2021 2020
Capital Redemption Reserve 27.20 27.20
Balance Brought Forward 27.20 27.20
Share Forfeiture Account
Balance Brought Forward 1.39 1.39
General Reserve 1.39 1.39
Balance Brought Forward 1,484.11 1,309.11
Transfer from Surplus 350.00 175.00

1,834.11 1,484.11

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financial statements 12,000.25 10,482.04
Profit for the year 3,511.22 1,751.32
Less: Appropriations
Dividend distributed on equity shares 64.17 48.14
Tax on equity dividend - 9.97
Transfer to General Reserve 350.00 175.00
Closing Balance 15,097.30 12,000.25
TOTAL 16,260.00 13,512.95
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Note 15 - Other Non - Current Financial Liahilities [Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise]
As at March 31, Asat March 31,

Partioulars 2021 z020
Leased Deposits 4830 7380
Total 48.30 73.80
Note 16 - Deferred Tax Liabilities

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Pardiouury 2021 2020
Deferred tax liabilites arising on account of :
Deferred tax asset arising on account of Provision for employee benefits 7.03 618
Deferred tax gsset arising on account of Financlal assets at fair 1892 486
value through P&L
TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 25495 1004
eferred tax liability arising on account of Difference between accounting base
and tax bage of PPE 12476 13193
TOTAL OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 124.76 131.93
HIT. between accounting base and tax hase of PPP GE.81 120.89
Total 98.81 120.89
Note 17 - Trade Paybles

As at March 31, AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Pue to Microe, Small and Medium Enterprises ( Refer Note below], - L.o7
Others 533.07 27744
Total 533.07 282.51
a) DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO, MEDIUM AND SMALL As at March 31, As at March 31,
ENTERPRISES : 2021 2020
{1} The principal amount and the interest due therson [(to be shown
separately]) remalning unpald to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting vean

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - 5.or
Interest due on above = 0.01

(ii] The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of
the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along
with the amounts of the pavment made to the supplicr beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year Mil Mil
lii} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Mil Wil
making pavment {which have been paid but beyond the appolnted day
during the vear} but without adding the interest specified under Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, Mil Wil
iv] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 012
end of each accounting year,
v] The ampunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in il Mil
the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid ta the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Media
Emterprise Development Act, 2006,
Note 18 - Other Current Financial Liabilities

As at March 31, Asat March 31,
vardowlary z021 2020
a) Statmary dues payahle 28531 150.08
b} Salaries due to director 37793 16597
¢] Advance received from clients 57.94 64,25
d} Other Liabilities 19446 11.96
e) Unclaimed Dividend 24.24 29.36
Total Th4. 88 421.61
Note 19 - Employee Benefit Obligation

As al March 31, Asat March 31,
Fartioulars 2021 2020
Provision for gratuity [net) [(Hefer Note 25) 134.32 139.27
Total 134.32 139.27
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Note 20 - Revenue From Operations

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

As at March 31,

A= at March 31,

2021 2020

Operating Income :

Manufactured goods 14,415.32 11,511.56

Traded goods - 13.92
14,415.32 11,525.48

Less : Excise - -
14,415.32 11,525.48

Sale of producls comprises :

Manufactured goods

Sales of Boron Product & other chemicals 14,415.32 11,511.586

Traded goods

Ulexite - 13.92
14.415.32 11,525.48

Note 21 - Other Income

As al March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Rividend income from investments .43 .38
Dividend on Mutual Fund 0.69 84.51
Interest received 157.02 96,72
Interest received on Debenture 0.03 0.03
Gain/{Loss) on Sale of Investments 15.9a 91.80
Met gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 58.33 5991
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.30 -
Sales of Scrap 4.39 (.92
Rent & Facility Charges 126.13 169.06
Sundry balances w/hack .40 0.05
Total 363.98 509.38

Naote 22 - Cost of Material Consumed

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

artieias 2021 2020
Opening Stock Ba6.80 1,052.40
Add: Purchases
exite 6,448.98 4.960.62
Sulphuric Acid 60277 574.83
Lithium - 999 .41
Others 5491 50.25
7O73.54 7.637.52
Less : Closing Stock 1,813.99 B66.8BB
Total 6,159.55 6,7 T70.64
[a] Raw Materials Consumed Comprise :
exite 551231 5,111.10
Sulphuric Acid 593.19 576,75
Lithium 1.14 1,033.97
Others 5291 48.94

(b Value of imported raw materials consumed and the value of all indigenous raw materials similarly consumed and the

percentage of each to the total consumption.

As at March 31

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 Ui 2020 Uy
Raw Materials
(i) lmported 5.513.45 89.51 6,155.35 90.91
(ii} Indigenous 46,10 1049 61529 5,09
6,159.55 100.00 6,770.64 100.00

Note 23 - Purchase of Traded Goods

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars e 420
Flat / Ulexite 98941 10.40
a939.41 10.40
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Note 24 - (Increase] / Decrease in inventories

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

2 As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Inventories at the beginning of the vear
Finished goods B5.37 31.37
Work-in-progress 17.74 2454

10215 55.91

Inventories at the end of the vear
Finished goods G3.00 85.37
Work-in-progress 11.85 1777
Flat 989.41 -

1,064.26 103.14

(961.11) (47.23)
Note 25 - Employee Benefit Expenses
As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Ex-gratia 937.53 676,10
Contribution to ESLC, 3.55 4.08
Contribution to Provident Fund 40.09 34.67
Pravision / Contribution to Group Gratuity and LIC 13.35 11.24
Workmen & Staff Welfare expenses 18.149 11.12
Total 1,012.71 737.21

{a} As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee benefits”, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:

Pefined Contribution Plan ;

Contribution to Provident Fund is Rs, 40.09 Lakhs/- [Previous Year Rs. 34.67 Lakhs) , ESIC and Labour Welfare Fund Includes Rs. 3.55 Lakhs- (Previous

Year Rs.4.08 Lakhs].

Defined Benefit Plan :
Gratuity and Leave Encashment:

The Company makes partly annual contribution ta the Employees” Group Gratuity-cume-Lile Assurance Scheme of the Life Insurance Corporation of India, a
funded benefit plan for gualifying employees, The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retivement, death while in employment

on termmination of emplovment of an amount equivalent te 15 days service for each completed year of service of part thereof depending on the date of
joining. The benefit vests after five yvears of continuous service.

Gratuity Funded Leave Encashment

Assumptions Non Funded Non Funded

As at March 31,  AsatMarch 31,  As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit Obligation:
Present Value of obligation as at beginning of year 139.27 12284 24.56 17.80
Current service cost 12.82 10549 087 £.50
Prior service cost = - + =
Interest cost B.75 a.22 1.05 0,95
Actuarlal {zain) / loss KAL) | 2.36 14.87 692
Benefits paid [30.33) [4.74) [19.24) [7.62)
Fresent Value of obligation as at end af the vear 13433 139.27 2794 24.56
Change in Plan assets
Flan assets at period beginning , at fair value 122.84 105,940 - -
Expected return on plan assets 8.24 757 - =
Actuarial {gain] / loss [1.45} (0.81}) = -
Contribution 17.82 1492 19.39 762
Renefits paid [30.32) [4.74) {19.39) (7.62]
Fair value of Plan assets at end of the year 117.11 122.84 - -
Fair Val f Plan A
Fair Value of plan assets at heginning of year 122,54 10540 - -
Actual return on plan assets 6577 576 = -
Contributions 17.82 14.92 19.39 Te2
Benefits paid (30.32) (4.74) [15.39) (7.62)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of year 117.11 122,684 - -
Funded status - - - -
Excess of Actual over estimated return Hil Ml Hil Nil
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The Amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and statements
of profit and loss

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Present value of obligations as at the end of year 13432 13927 27195 2454

Fair value of plan assets a5 at the end of the year 11711 12284

Funded status

Net asset/{lability) recognized in balance sheet 17.21 16.43 2795 2454

Expenses for the year

Current service cost 12.82 1059 6.87 650

Prior service cost .

Interest cost on benefit obligation 8.75 822 1.05 095

Expeeted return on plan assets (8.22) [7.57) :

Net actuarial (gain)/luss recognised in the year 14.87 6.92

Total Expenses Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 13.35 1124 22.79 1437

.ﬂ.l.l.un:if {gd.m]ﬁ.mms duc Lo Dl_mugl-.lph.h: .ﬁ:.:.umptiun d‘unq;ui in DBD

Acturial (gain] /Losses due to Financial Assumption changes in DBO 23.13 611

Actuarial {Gain)/Losses due to Experience on DBO (19.32) [3.75)

Return on Plan Asets (Greater]) Less than Discount rate 1.45 081

Netactuarial (gain)loss recognised in the year

Total Actuarial (gain]),loss included in OCI 5.25 317

Assumptions Gratuity Funded Leave Encashment
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch31, AsatMarch31, AsatMarch31,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Discount Rabe 7.05% 6.82% 7.05% 68320

Employese Turnover 7.88% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Salary Escalation 7.00% 5.00% 7.00% 5.00%

Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases , considered in actuarial valuation , take account of inflation, seniority , promotion, and other relevant factors, such

as supply and demand in the employment market.

Nole 26 - Net Finance Cost

Asat March 31 As at March 31
Particulars ¥ g
2021 2020
Interest on Working Capital 0.39 010
(Other Interest 313 0.04
Total 3.52 0.14
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021
Note 27 - Other Expenses {Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars AsatMarch 31,  AsatMarch 31,

2021 2020

Stores, Spares and Packing 39436 26490
Power & Fuel 536.58 545.44
Repairs & Maintenance (Building) 259 39.07
Machinery & Electrical Repairs 113.31 100.69
Water Charges 17.67 14.61
Factory Expenses 400.55 335.89
Insurance Charges 14.81 10.02
Repairs-Others 10.29 14.62
Rent and Other Charges 74.14 87.76
Rates & Taxes 3.26 348
Discount (.63 -

Dronation 212 11.00
Freight, Coolic & Cartage 17723 A8.64
Commission and Brokerage 511.47 356.93
Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution 44.00 37.52
Travelling and conveyance 24.52 79,84
Telephone charges 413 547
Printing & Stationery 276 382
Dirpctors Sitting Fees 156 LED
Vehicle Expenses 13.84 2391
Aunditors’ Remuneration 14.64 1619
Legal and Professional charges 236,490 67 66
Bank Charges 5.57 5.61
Sales Tax 213 0.3z
Loss on sale of Shares 0.01 -

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 186,32 112.49
General Expenses 17.95 2314
Total 2,813.34 2,190.82

Consumable Stores & Spares and Packing :

As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
a) Imported - -
b} Indigenous 394,36 264590

Note 28 - Taxation

Ag at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Current bax

Current tax on profits for the year 1,229.12 539,15
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods B.66 8.19
Total current tax expense 1,237.78 547.34
Deferved tox

Decrease/{increase] in deferred tax assets - -
[Decrease]/increase in deferred tax labilites [9.207] (7.52)
Total deferred tax expense,(benefit) (2.20) [7.52)
Income tax expense 1,228.58 539.82

Note 29 - Earning Per Share

Asat March 31, As at March 31,

Cari e 2021 2020

Profit after Tax 342584 1,694 60
Mo, of shares outstanding F209000 FZ09000
Welghted Average Mo. of shares + potential shares o/fs 3209000 F209000
Earning per share (Basic) 10676 5281
Earning per share {Diluted) 106.76 K28
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 20 - Value Of Imports On CIF Basis

(Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particular As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Faw Materials 521694 4,955.24

MNote 31- Expenditure in Fnrelgn Excllange

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particular 2021 2020

1. Foreign Travels - 25.76
2, Others 0.1% -
Note 32 - Remuneration To Auditors

Particular As at March 31, As at March 31,

2021 2020

As Auditors 11.70 14.69
Tax Audit Fees 2.94 1.50
Total 14.64 16.19

MNote 33 - Details of Related Parties Transactions are as under.

Details of transactions between the Company and its related parties are disclosed below:
a} List of related parties and relationship where control exists or with whom transactions were entered into;

Subsidiary

Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Mr. 5. K.)ain, Chairman and Managing Director { upto 18th October, 2020)
Mr. Sajal Jain, Managing Director & Chief Financial Officer (from 1st December, 2020

Relative of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Saumya Jain, Business Development Manager

b) Tranmsactions during the year with related partes:

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise

soli Relatives of Key
Sr. No. Particulars Subsidiary Company Key Management Personnel Managerial Person
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 | 2019-20
1 Indoborax Infrastrucutre Private Ltd
Dividend Received from subsidiary S0.00 48.50
Investment in Equity shares of subsidiary 939,00 -
2 Payments to & provision for Directors’
remuneration
Mr.5.K Jaln 140,41 119.23
Mr. Sajal Jain 333.65 11923
3 Purchase of flat
Mr. Sajal Jain 9al.00 -
4 Salary to Relative
Mr. Saumya [ain H3.68 4680
c] Outstanding as at yvear end
Relatives of Key
St No. Particulars Subsidiary Company Key Management Personnel Managerial Person
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 | 2019-20
1 Dutstanding Loan given
Indo Boraxinfrastructure Pyt Lid - -
2 Outstanding Payables
Mr.5.K Jain 11644 #81.59
Mr. Sajal Jain 261.49 84.37
Mr, Saumya Jain 3.29 8.28




(% JINDO BORAX & CHEMICALS LIMITED ( b )

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the year ended 31st March 2021

Note 34 - Financial Instruments

i] Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of
a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observahility of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of ohservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Asat 31 March 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Shares 21.16 - - 21.16
Mutnal funds 301036 - - 301036
Other 0.41 - 0.03 .44
Total financial assets 3,031.93 - 0.03 3,031.96
As at 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
Shares 13.83 - - 13.83
Mutual funds 1,784.71 - - 1,784.7 1
Other .39 - 0.03 .43
Total financial assets 1,798.92 - 0.03 1,798.96
(ii) Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specilic valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
The use of quoted market prices for investments in shares and mutual funds.
Note 35 - Financial Risk Management
1} Financial Instruments by Cartagory :
J1st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Particulars FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost
Financial assets :
Investments
mutual funds Shares and Bond 3,031.93 - 1,798.492 -
Loans
to others - 380.42 - 385.34
to other body corporates - 1,488.93 - 1,735.11
Trade receivables - B78.09 - BO7.75
Security deposits - 46.28 - 39.45
Cash and cash equivalents - 20256 - &,095.40
Unclaimed dividend account - 2424 - 29.36
Total 3,031.93 3.020.52 1,798.92 T.092.41 .
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Trade payvahles - 533.07 - 282.51
(ther financial liabilities - B13.18 - 49541
Total - 1,346.25 - 77792
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a) The carrying value of trade receivables, securities deposits, insurance claim receivable, foans given, cash and bank balances and other
Sinancial assets recorded al amortised cost, (s considered to be o reasonable approximation of fair vilue.

The carrving value of borrowings. trade payables and other financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost is considered to be a reasonalbie
approximation of fair value,

ii}  Riskmonagement

The Group’s aetivities expose (E to morket risk, lguidity risk ond credit risk, This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to
and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financiol statements:

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cazh and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Bank deposits,
recetvables, dertvative financial diversification
instruments, financial assets of asset base, credit
measured at amortised cost limits and collateral.
Liguidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability  of
forecasts committed credit
linez and borrowing facilities
Market risk - [oreign Becognised (inancial assets and Rabilities not Cash flow forecasting Material bought on
exchange denominated in Indian rupee (Rs)] sensitvity analysis receipt of documents,

if material bought on
credit same are hedged.

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings ak vartable rates Sensitivity analysis Mix of borrowings
taken at fixed
and floating rates
Market  risk - Ulexite, Fayahles linked to ulexite prices Sensgitivity analysis The ulexite, Lithium
Lithium Hydroxide & hydroxide and other
other raw material prices raw material is

purchase at tha
prevailing price from
suppliers.

Market risk - security price Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis Portlolio diversification

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasary department of the Company under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors provide written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, marketrisk, creditrisk and investment of excess liguidity.

A) CreditRisk

Creditrisk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due to the Group causing
financial loss. It arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, security deposits, loans given and
principally from credit exposures to customers relating to outstanding recetvables. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is
limited to the carryving amount of financial assets recognised at reporting date.

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the Company,
and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and /or reports
on customers and other counterparties areobtained and used. The Company’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties.

Inrespect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
company of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various parts of
India. The Group has very limited history of customer default, and considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or
impaired to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash eguivalents, mutual funds, bank deposits, loans and derivative financial instruments is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable organisations with high quality external credit ratings.

Group provides for expected credit losses on financial assets by assessing individual financial instruments for expectation of any credit
losses. Since the assets have very low credit risk, and are for varied natures and purpose, there is no trend that the company can draws to
apply consistently to entire population. For such financial assets, the Group's policy is to provides for 12 month expected credit losses
upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit risk. The Group does not have
any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering their low credit risk nature, though incurred loss provisions
are disclosed under each sub-category of such financial assets,

——————————————————————
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Detail of trade receivables that are past due is given below: (Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)
Particulars Asat As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

Mot diie 738.22 549,09
{1-30 days past due 126.66 22995
31-60 days past due 3.19 455
61-90 days past due 1.24 14.25
Maore than BB .91

*rounded off Lo nil

By 809 B07.75

B) Liquidity risk

Frudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availahility of funding through
anadequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities.

Management moniters rolling forecasts of the Group's liguidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.
The Group takes into account the liquidity ofthe market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Group's liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheetliguidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

Financing arrangements
The Group had obtained credit fcility of Rs. 1035 Lakhs from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd, however the same has been utililzed.
Contractual maturities offinancial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all
non-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant.

31-Mar-21 Payable on Less than 1 Less than 1-2 Less than 2-3 More than 3 Total
demand year year year year
Borrowings z = = = = -
Trade payable 51590 - = = 17.17 333.07
Other financial liabilities B2.18 082,740 - - . Thd.BA
Total 598.08 6H2.70 - - 17.17 1,297.95
31-Mar-20 Payable on Less than 1 Less than 1-2 Less than 2-3 More than 3 Total
demand year year year year
Borrowings E - - - - -
Trade payable 27646 - - - 5.05 282,51
Qther financial liabilities 2361 328,00 - - - +2lal
Total 370,07 328.00 - - 605 70412

C) Marketrisk- foreignexchange

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising [rom foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to US Dollar Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency. The
Group, as perits overall strategy group imports raw materials on the basis of market demand. The Group does not use forward contracts
and swaps for speculative purposes,

Sensitivity

The sensitivity to profitor loss from changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from financial instruments denominated in USD. In case of
areasonably possible change in INR /USD exchange rates of + /- 2% (previous year +/-2%) at the reporting date, keeping all othervariables
constant, there would have been animpact on profits of INR 208,11 Lakhs (previous year INR 80.59 Lakhs).

D) Interestraterisk
1) Liabilities

The Group's policy is to minimise interest rate cash ow risk exposures on long-term fnancing. At 31 March 2021, the Group is exposed to
changes in marketinterest rates through bank borrowings atvariable interest rates.

Interestrate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Group to interest rate risk:

Ziod
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{Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020

Variable rate borrowing = -

Fixed rate borrowing - -

Total Borrowings - -
Sensitivity

The sensitivity to prafit or loss in case of a reasonably possible change in interest rates of +/- 50 hasis points (previous year: +/- 50 basis
points), keeping all other variables constant, would have resulted in an impact on profits by INR .003 Lakhs {Previous year INR 0.008

Lalths])
ii) Assets
The Group's linancial assets are carried at amortised cost and are at fixed rate only, They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate risk
since neither the carrying amountnor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change inmarketinterest rates.
E) Pricerisk
Exposure from investments in mutual funds:

The Group's exposure to price risk arises from investments in mutual funds held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet as fair
value through other comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Group invest only in
liquid Funds,
Sensitivity
The sensitivity to profit or loss in case of an increase in price of the instrument by 5% keeping all other variables constant would have
resulted inan impact on profits by 303,19 Lakhs (previous year INR 374.11 Lakhs),

Exposure from trade payables:

Group generally Import on advance payment or on payment al the tme of recelpt docutments. I there is any transaction of Imports on
credit basis, thensuch transaction is hedged.

Note 36 - Capital Management

The Group’ s capital management objectives are: to ensure the group's ability to continue as a going concern, to provide an adeguate return
to shareholder. The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cashand cash equivalents as presented on the
face ofbalance sheet.

The Management assesses the group’s capital requirements in erder to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding

excessive leverage, This takes into account the subordination levels of the group’s various classes of debt. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in the economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying

assets,
The company monitors the capital on the basis of following ratios:

1. Equity Ratio

Particulars AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
2021 2020

Total equity 17,.2B0.90 13,833.85

Total assets 18,992.90 14,875.78

Equity Ratio 90.99% 93,00

2. Debt Equity Ratio

Particulars As atMarch 31, AsatMarch 31,
2021 2020

Net debts x )

Total equity 17.280.20 14.875.78

Gearing Ratio

Dividends

{t] Equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of Rs 2,00 per share G418 48.14

(i} Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period 32090 £4.18

———————————————————————
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Note 37 - For Disclosures mandated by Schedule 111 of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional

information, refer below:

[Amounts are in lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Mame of the Entity i the He::::::ﬂ; Eaﬁ;:h Share In Profit o Loss after Tax Share in other Comprehensive lncome Share i total comprebensive income
As Yof As % of As % of As Y% of Share
consalidated Amount consolidated Amount other comprehensive Amoumt i compresentive Amount
metassets | [Rs in Lakhs) pradit or loss [Rs in Lakhs) Income [Rs in Lakhs) [ncome [Rs in Lakhs)
J103.2021 | 31032081 3103.2021 3L03.2021 31032021 31.03.2021 31032021 31032021
1 2 3 4 5 & 7 E 9

IParent Subsidairy

[ndian :

Indi Boray & Chemvicals Lid 94.05%| 16252.85 09, 90% 342549 [ CH0L 0K B5.39 59990 351087

Incloboeay |nfrastructure Pyt Lid 5.05% 102805 0.01% (.35 (0.00r%% (.01 1% 0.35

TOTAL IO 1?25&.90! 100.00%, 3425485 1000 8539 100000 351123

Note 38 - Acquisition of Shares in Indoborax Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

Board of Directors at its meeting dated 2Znd March, 2021 had approved the investment in the right issue of Indoborax
Infrastructure Private Limited . The valuation arrived at Net Assets Method valuation and certificate obtained by Registered Valuer,
As per the valuations The Company has invested 939,00 lakhs in rigth issue.

Details of the Purchase consideration are as follows:

a) Purchase consideration ;

Particulars Amounts
Cash paid 939.00
TOTAL 939.00
b} working of fair value of acquisition :
Deposits 52.47
Loans & Advances 2.32
Durties & Taxes 0.07
Trade Receivables 4.25
Cash & Bank Balances 37.55
G6,66
Liabilities :
Trade Payables 2.63
Other liabilities 0.15
2.78
Total Net Assels at falr value 93.88
Equity shares before right issue 10,000
Fair value per equity share Rs. 939
The total value of 1,00,000 shares @ 10/- per share premium of Rs. 929/- per shares 939
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Note 39 - Commitment and Contingent Liabilty :

a) In 1992, STC of India Ltd had claimed for Rs. 9,02.807 /- towards price difference & others, against this, Honourable Bombay High
Courtordered Company to give hank quarantee of Rs. 1,65,000/- [Previous year Bs.1,65,000/-).

b} Balance instalment towards work -in - progress of Rs, 2086.06 Lakhs, payable on the basis of various stages of completion of project
over the period of five years.

¢} i} Thecompany has created a fixed deposit of Rs. 31 Lakhs marked lien in favour of Customs towards security against imported raw
material.

ii} The company has received show cause notice amounting to Rs. 1057.33 Lakhs under the provisions of Customs Act. In view of
Hon'ble Supreme Courtdecision and legal opinion, the company is confident to successfully defend and nullify the notice. Therefare,
no provision for contingnet liability has been made,

Note 40 - Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has incurred INR 44.00 lakhs ( previous year INR 37.52 Lakhs) towards Social Responsibility activities. [Lis included in
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, no amount has been spent on construction facquisition ofan asset of the Company and
the entire amount has been spentin cash. The amount required to be spent under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year
2021 is INE 43.98 lakhs i.e. 2% ol average net profils for last three financial years, calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

41 COVID- 19 effects and assessment :

The Group's office and manufacturing facilities remained shut due to lockdown impesed by Government of India, which has impacted
its operations of the Company:
The Group has resumed its operation and started manufacturing facilities in phased manner as per the directives the Government of
India. The Company is adhering to COVID-19 guidelines issued by the Government of India, State Government and the Local
Authorities forits operations.

As the business situation is very dynamic, the company is closely monitoring it, However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a
continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different from
that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The company has taken into consideration the impact in its
financial statements as at 31st March, 2021, The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.

42  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-currentas per the Company’s normal operating ¢ycle and other criteria
setoutin the Schedule IT1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current - non current classification of assets and liabilities.

43  During the year under review, the company has further invested a sum of Rs, 939,00 Lakhs by way of Rights offer by subsidiary named
Indoborax Infrastructure Private Limited. The company has received 100000 equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each ata premium of Rs. 929/
The said right price offer was on the basis of value determined by an independent valuer.

44 Authorization of Financial Statements

The standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2021 (including comparatives) were approved by the Board of
Directors on 14th June, 2021,

45 The previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make in compliance with the current
financial year,

Notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per attached report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board Directors

For Pulindra Patel & Co,, Indo Borax & Chemicals Limited

Chartered Accountants

; : Sajal Jain Arun Sureka

Fum:Regstraca Na 16T W Managing Director & CFO Director
DEN-00314855 DIN-00148145

Pulindra Fatel Sreelekha Jain N K Mittal

Proprietor Director Director

Membership No. 048991 DIN-080578%%G DIN-D0314916

Place : Mumbai gﬂ:f":;lr"ﬂmﬂf Pravin Chavan

Date : 14th June, 2021 DIN-03556411 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANY PURSUANT TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013
READWITHRULE S OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary

Rs.in Lakhs
S; Particulars
1. | Name of the Company quqborax Infrastructure Private
Limited
2. | Reporting Period 1= April, 2020 to 31t March, 2021
3. | Reporting Currcncy INR
4. | Share Capital 11.00
5. | Reserve & Surplus 1017.05
6. | Total Assets 1034.46
7. | Total Liabilities 6.40
8. | Investments 0.00
9. | Turnover 0.00
10. | Profit before taxation 1.21
11. | Provision for taxation 0.85
12 | Profit after taxation 0.35
13. | Proposed Dividend 0.00
15. | % of shareholding 100%
16. | Country India
For and on behalf of Board
Sajal [ain Arun Surcka Govind Parmar Pravin Chavan
Managing Directar & CFO Director Director Company Secretary

Sreclekha fain
Director
Mumbai, 14" June, 2021





